Financial highlights

Turnover

Gross revenue (gross profit)
Group operating profit*
Profit before tax*

Diluted earnings per share*
Full year dividend

Cash inflow from operating
activities**

trading environment

Exceptional restructuring charge of £8.5 million resulting in annualised cost savings
of £7 million, through timely implementation of prudent cost management programmes

Strong financial position — operating cash flows** increased; interest cover* of 15 times
Recommended full year dividend increased 17% to 0.70 pence per share

Continued development of integrated global offering

* hefore goodwill and exceptional restructunng costs
**belare exceptional restructuring costs

INCEPTA GROUP PLC.
FinANC(A STATEAMENTS 2002,

2002

£286.3m
£170.8m
£27.8m
£26.0m
3.19p
0.70p

£30.3m

2001

£265.7m
£153.3m
£27.8m
£27.2m
3.94p
0.60p

£29.2m

|

A
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up 8%

up 11%
unchanged
down 4%
down 19%
up 17%

up 4%

Continued growth in revenues to £170.8 million, up 11% on last year

Operating profitability* maintained at £27.8 million, despite the very difficult

Strong operating margins* of 16%, amongst the highest within Incepta’s peer group

Profit before tax* falls marginally to £26.0 million (2001 — £27.2 million)

WANQWUDD = 0
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Directors’ report

The directors of Incepta Group plc present
their report together with the audited
financial staternents for the year ended
28 February 2002,

Principal activities

Incepta is an international marketing and
communications group, its principal activities
being public relations, advertising and
marketing services. Incepta Group plc itself is
the ultimate hoiding company of the Group.

Incepta has a clear focus on the higher
growth, higher value communications
disciplines. The directors believe that, despite
difficult trading conditions, the Group's
performance during the year under review
has demanstrated the resilience that its
market positioning provides and clearly
highlights the financial strength of the
Group. Appropriate action has been taken to
proactively manage the cost base while
ensuring that this has not impaired the
Group capitalising on its longer term growth
potential. [n addition, the Group completed
a number of acquisitions during the year to
strengthen its global positioning.

Other developments, current trading and
future prospects of the Group are discussed
in detail in the Chairman’s statement, the
Review of operations and the Financial

review.

Resuits and dividends

The Group made a profit attributable to
shareholders for the year of £3,813,000
(2001 - £16,471,000). The directors
recommend a final dividend of 0.70 pence
per ordinary share {2001 — 0.60 pence) to he
paid on 15 July 2002 to shareholders on the
register as at 17 May 2002.

Directors and their interests
The following served as directors during the
year:

David Wright

Richard Nichols

Mike Butterworth {(appointed 18 June 2001)
Anthony Carlisle

Kevin Steeds (resigned 12 September 20071)
Robert Alcock (appointed 1 April 2001}
Charles Good

Christian Strenger (appointed 1 April 2001)
Neil Mackay

Bob Mortan (resigned 31 March 20071)

Brief biographical details of the directors at
the date of this report are set out on pages
5¢ and 51.

The interests of directors in the share capital
of the Company and in share options are set
out in the statement of directors’
rernuneration and interests on pages 100 to
105.

Directors’ responsihilities

Company law requires the directors to
prepare financial statements which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group at the end of
each financial year and of the profit or loss
for that year. In preparing those financial
statements, the directors confirm that:
suitable accounting policies have been
selected and applied consistently; reascnable
and prudent judgements and estimates have
been made; applicable accounting standards
have been followed; and that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The directors are also responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and the
Group and to enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985. They have a general
responsihility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open io them to safequard the
assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.




Charitable and political donations

The Group made charitable donations during
the year amecunting to £77,000 (2001 -
£47,000).

The Political Parties, Elections and
Referendums Act 2000 ('the Act’) requires
disclosure of any donations made by
companies to an EU Political Crganisation
(including a registered political party in the
UK) or any EU Political Expenditure incurred
which is in excess of £200. ‘EU Political
Crganisation” and ‘EU Political Expenditure’
are both defined in the Act.

Althcugh the Company does not make
donations to political parties within the
normal meaning of that expression, as part
of its nermal work on behalf of clients and
as part of its own marketing, the Company's
public affairs subsidiary, Citigate Public
Affairs Limited, needs to attend or sponsor
events which are organised by political
parties or other political organisations, for
which a charge is made.

The Company also from time to time invites
clients and prospective clients to attend
events that fall within the meaning of the
Act's provisions. The Act defines 'donations’
very broadly such that this sort of activity
falls within its ambit. It similarly defines EU
Political Organisation very widely such that it
includes, for example, bodies concerned with
policy review and law reform, with
representation of the business community or
with the representation of their communities
or special interest groups which the
Company may wish to support.

During the year the Company incurred no
EU Political Expenditure. It made donaticns
amounting to £4,400 to the Labour Party as
payment for seats at the Party'’s Annual
Conference Dinner.

Substantial shareholdings

As at 3 May 2002, the directors were aware
of the following interest of 3 per cent. or
mare in the issued ordinary share capital of
the Company and had not been notified,
pursuant to the provisions of the Companies
Act 1985, of any further such interests:

Percentage

of issued share

capital held

Shareholder %

Morley Fund Management Limited 11.00
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Policy on payment to creditors

The Company agrees the terms and
conditions under which business transactions
with suppliers are conducted. it compties
with these payment terms, provided that it is
satisfied that the supplier has provided the
goods or services in accordance with agreed
terms and conditions. The number of days
taken to pay suppliers, calculated on the
basis of trade creditors as at 28 February
2002 and average daily purchases for the
year ended 28 February 2002, is 21 days
(2001 - 20 days).

Employees

It is the Group's pelicy not to discriminate
between employees or potential employees
on any grounds. Fult and fair consideration is
given to the recruitment, training and
promotion of disabled people and, should
staff becorne disabled during the course of
their employment, efforts are made to
provide appropriate re-training. The Group
places encrmous importance on the
contributions of its employees and aims to
keep them informed of developments in the
Group by way of regular meetings,
newsletters and publications, together with
distribution of the Annual Report.

Auditors

The audit of the Group was put out 1o
competitive tender during the year. As a
result of this process PricewaterhouseCoopers
resigned as auditors and the directors
appointed KPMG Audit Plc as auditors. A
resolution appointing KPMG Audit Pic will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting.
Special notice has been received for this
resclution pursuant to section 388 of the
Companies Act 1985.

By order of the boayd
Mike Butterworth
Company Secretary

7 May 2002
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Consolidated profit and loss account
for the year ended 28 February 2002

2002 2001
Before Exceptional
exceptionat restructuring
restructuring costs
costs {Note 8} Total Total
MNote £0G0 £000 £'000 £:000
Turnover 2,3
Continuing cperations 269,624 - 269,624 265,663
Acquisitions 16,645 - 16,645 -
286,269 - 286,269 265,663
Cost of safes (115,437} - {115,437) {112,331)
Gross profit {gross revenue) 2,3
Continuing operations 161,222 - 161,222 153,332
Acquisitions 9,610 - 9,610 -
170,832 - 170,832 153,332
Administrative expenses (including goodwill) (149,224) {8,512) (157,736) {126,614)
Other operating income 4 802 - 802 583
Group operating profit before goodwill 2,3
Continuing operaticns 25,613 (8,512) 17,101 27,792
Acquisitions 2,174 - 2174 -
27,787 (8,512) 19,275 27,792
Goodwill (5.377) - (5.377) (491)
Group operating profit
Continuing operations 23,252 {8,512) 14,740 27,301
Acquisitions N (842) - (842) -
22,410 (8,512) 13,898 27,301
Share of operating profit of associates 26 - 26 59
Total operating profit: Group and share of associates 22,436 {8,512) 13,924 27,360
Net interest payable 6 (1,805) - (1,805) (681
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 2,37 20,631 (8,512) 12,119 26,679
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 9 (9,638) 1,281 (8,357} (10,086)
Profit on ordinary activities after tax 10,993 (7,231) 3,762 16,593
Minority interests 22 51 - 51 {122}
Profit attributable to group shareholders 11,044 (7.231) 3,813 16,471
Dividend 10 (3.434) {2,707}
Retained profit for the financial year 21 379 13,764
Earnings per share
Basic 11 0.82p 4.02p
Diluted 11 0.74p 3.83p
Basic before goodwill and exceptional restructuring costs " 3.52p 4.14p
Diluted before goodwill and exceptional restructuring costs 11 3.19p 3.94p

There 15 no difference between the profit reported above and historical cost profit.
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Consolidated balance sheet
as at 28 February 2002

2002 2001
Note £°000 £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 12 340,054 301,635
Tangible assets 13 16,839 15,089
356,893 316,724
Fn\)estments:
Investrnent in associates 14 78 70
QOther investments 14 1,069 AR
1,147 781
358,040 317,505
Current assets
Work in progress 4,362 3,920
Debtors 15 59,970 60,578
Cash at bank and in hand 25 19,794 20,493
84,126 93,991
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 16 (103,308} (87,921)
Net current (liabilities)/assets {19,182) 6,070
Total assets less current liabilities 338,858 323,575
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 17 (31,612) (24,545)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 19 {29,994) (33,913)
Net assets 2 277,252 265,117
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 20 4,716 4,487
Share premium account 21 38,542 33,789
Shares to be issued 21 68,174 67,277
Merger reserve 21 130,585 123,770
Profit and loss account 21 35,158 35,654
Equity shareholders’ funds 277,175 264,917
Minority interests (equity) 22 77 200
Total equity capital employed 277,252 265,117

These financial statements were approved hy the board of directors on 7 May 2002 and were
signed on its behalf by:

Richard Nichols (
Chief Executive A

Mike Butterworth . W
Group Finance Director Mﬁk % '




70 Incepta Group ple Financial Statements 2002

Company balance sheet
as at 28 February 2002

2002 2001
Note £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 4,286 3,584
Investments:
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 14 467,700 287,898
Other investrents 14 1,055 711
468,755 288,609
473,041 292,193
Current assets
Debtors: due after more than one year 15 54,575 61,090
Debtors: due within one year 15 35,913 24,450
90,488 85,540
Cash at bank and in hand 9,878 10,033
100,366 95,573
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 16 (215,736) {42,536)
Net current (liabilities}/assets (115,370) 53,037
Total assets less current liabilities 357,671 345,230
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 17 (30,852) {23,527}
Provisions for liabilities and charges 19 (26,820} (33,210}
Net assets 299,999 288,493
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 20 4716 4,487
Share premium account 21 38,542 33,789
Shares to be issued 21 68,174 67,277
Merger reserve 21 175,952 169,077
Profit and loss account 21 12,615 13,863
Equity shareholders’ funds 299,999 288,493

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 7 May 2002 and were

signed on its behalf by:

Richard Nichols O) \\D‘uu
Chief Executive )

Mike Butterworth - ; _MJZ\
s § Do

Group Finance Director
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 28 February 2002

2002 2001
Note £000 £'000

Cash inflow from operating activities 25,644 29,115
bividends received from associates 34 49
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 23 {1,936) (1,203)
Taxation 23 (11,063) (9,894}
Capital expenditure and financial investment 23 {6,378) (5,947}
Acquisitions 23 (18,072) (33,253}
Equity dividends paid {2,389) (1,961)
Net cash outflow before financing (14,160) (23,094)
Financing 23 5,050 24,126
{Decrease)/increase in cash in the year (9,110} 1,032
Reconciliation of group operating profit to cash flow from operating activities

2002 2001

£'000 £:000
Group operating profit 13,898 27,301
Goodwill 5,377 491
Depreciation 6,471 4,304
Net loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 172 11
QOther non-cash items (349) 84
{Increaseydecrease in work in progress (732) 1,986
Decrease in debtors 7.760 3,839
Decrease in creditors (6,953) {14,901)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 25,644 29,115
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

2002 2001

Note £000 £000

{Decrease)/increase in cash in the year {(9,110) 1,032
Cash inflow from increase in debt 23 (4,763) {(4,515)
Issuie costs of new bank loans 131 525
Movement in net debt resulting from cash flows 25 {13,742) (2,958)
Debt acquired with subsidiary undertakings and businesses 25 (63) (2,981)
Inception of finance leases (105) (119}
Issue of loan notes for non-cash consideration (8,816) {13,904)
Other non-cash changes {(129) (114)
Effect of foreign exchange 25 (594) 369
Movement in net debt (23,449) (19,707)
Opening net (debt)/funds 25 (9,296) 10,411
Closing net debt 25 (32,745) (9,296)
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses
far the year ended 28 February 2002

Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£'000 £000 £000 £000
Profit attributable to group shareholders 3,813 16,471 2,757 5,763
Exchange differences on foreign currency net investments (304) 875 - -
Total recognised gains and losses 3,509 17,346 2,757 5,763
Reconciliation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds
for the year ended 28 February 2002
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
Mote £000 £000 £000 £000
Profit attributabfe to group shareholders 3,813 16,471 2,757 5,763
Dividend (3.434) (2,707} (3.434) {2,707)
379 13,764 (677) 3,056
Exchange differences on foreign currency net investments (304} 875 - -
Contribution to Qualifying Employee Share Trust (571} - (571) -
Issue of shares net of issue costs 11,857 143,873 11,857 143,973
Net movement in estimated value of shares to be issued
as consideration for acquisitions 21 897 44,750 897 44,750
Net addition to equity shareholders’ funds 12,258 203,362 11,506 191,779
Opening equity shareholders’ funds 264,917 61,555 288,493 95,714
Closing equity shareholders’ funds 277,175 264,917 299,999 288,493
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Notes to the financial statements
28 February 2002

Accounting policies .
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items
which are considered material in relation to the financial statements.

Basis of accounting and presentation of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting
standards and under the historical cost accounting rules. As discussed in note 1(8) below,
where goodwill is treated as having indefinite economic life, the financial statements
depart from the requirernent of cornpanies' legislation to amortise goodwill over a finite
period, in order to give a true and fair view.

In accordance with section 230(3) of the Companies Act 1985, the Company Is exernpt
from the requirernent to present its own profit and loss account. The profit of the
Company for the financial year dealt with in the consolidated finandial statements is
disclosed in the statement of total recognised gains and losses.

Geographical segmental information is disclosed in note 2. A more detailed analysis by
individual country Is considered to be commercially sensitive and is not provided.

Changes in presentation of financial information

Segmental information has been changed to more approgriately reflect the Group's
operations with the resuit that Design & Branding, which was formerly a separate class of
business, is now included in Marketing Services. Comparative figures for these two
divisions have been aggregated accordingly.

The following Financial Reporting Standards ('FRS'), which came into effect this year, have
been adopted in these financial statements:

The transitional rules of FRS 17, 'Retirement benefits’, have been adopted but have not
resulted in any material changes in presentation as the Group typically provides retirement
benefits to eligible employees by way of defined contribution schemes.

FRS 18, ‘Accounting policies’, has been adopted but has not resulted in any changes in
presentation.

FRS 19, ‘Deferred tax’, has been adopted and consequently deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been recognised and the required disclosures have been included. The
impact of applying FRS 19 to prior periods is immaterial, therefore no prior year
adjustment has been made.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements conselidate the accounts of the Company and all of its
subsiciary undertakings. Associates are included under the equity accounting method. The
results of subsidiary undertakings and associates acquired or disposed of in the year are
inciuded in the consolidated profit and loss account from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal.

Turnover
Turnover represents amounts receivable, either for services to customers or for work
completed during the year, excluding VAT,

Foreign currencies

In the financial statements of individual group undertakings, transactions in foreign
currencies are recorded in the local currency using the rate of exchange ruling at the date
of the transaction. Monetary assets and fiabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated using the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the gains or
losses on translation are included in the profit and loss account.

In the consolidated financial statements, the results of overseas subsidiary undertakings are
translated at the average rates during the year and the balance sheets of these
undertakings are translated at the year end exchange rates. Exchange differences arising on
the re-translation at year end rates of opening net assets and results for the year of
overseas subsidiary undertakings and of long term funding of investments in overseas
subsidiary undertakings are dealt with through reserves. All other exchange differences are
dealt with in the profit and loss account.

Leases

When the Group enters into a lease which entails taking substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of an asset, the lease is treated as a ‘finance lease’. The asset is
recorded in the balance sheet as a tangible fixed asset and is depraciated over the
estimated useful life or the term of the lease, whichever is shorter. Future instalments under
such leases, net of finance charges, are included within creditors. Rentals payable are
apportioned betweean the finance element, which is charged to the profit and loss account,
and the capital element which reduces the outstanding obligation for future instalments.

All other leases are accounted for as ‘operating leases’ and the rental charges are charged
1o the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the life of the lease.
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Notes to the financial statements
28 February 2002

{7}

(8)

®

Accounting policies {continued)

Fixed assets

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less the estimated residual value of tangible
fixed assets by equal instalments over their estimated useful economic lives as follows:

Short leasehold property - Life of lease
Fixtures, fittings, vehicles & equipment — 20% to 35% per annum.

Depreciation is provided on freehold and long leasehold property in order to reduce the
carrying value to the residual value estimated by the directors over a period of between
30 and 70 years.

Fixed asset investments are stated at the lower of cost and recoverable amount, where
recoverable amount is the higher of net realisable value and value in use.

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwilt arising on acquisitions of businesses, associated undertakings or subsidiary
undertakings is calculated as the excess of the fair value of the consideration given and
costs of acquisition over the fair value of the separable net assets acquired. Goodwill
arising on acquisitions up to and including 28 February 1998 was written off against
reserves immeadiately on acquisition.

in accordance with FRS 10: 'Goodwill and intangible assets’, goodwill arising on
acquisitions on or after 1 March 1998 is capitalised as an intangible fixed asset and
amortised over its estimated useful economic life. Each acquisition is assessed with
reference to its durability, ability to sustain long term profitability, proven ability to maintain
market leadership and the Group's commitment to develop and enhance its value across its
network of offices worldwide. Based on their assessment of acquisitions during the year
and reassessment of certain prior year acquisitions, the directers are of the opinion that the
intangible assets of the Group have economic lives ranging from 10 years to indefinite.

Goodwill previously written off directly to reserves has not been reinstated on the balance
sheet in accordance with the transitional provisions of FRS 10, On the subsequent disposal
or termination of a previously acquired business, the profit or loss on disposal or
termination is calculated after charging the amount of any related goodwill taken directly
to reserves on acquisition and the net book value of any related goodwill capitalised in the
balance sheet.

In accordance with FRS 10 and FRS 11: 'Impairmeant of fixed assets and goodwill’, the
carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed annually for impairment on the basis
stipulated in FRS 11 and adjusted to the recoverable amount if required.

Wheare goodwill is treated as having indefinite economic life, the financial statements
depart from the requirement of companies’ legislation to amortise goodwill over a finite
period, in order to give a true and fair view for the reasons outlined above. Capitalised
goodwill regarded as having indefinite useful economic life amounted to £320.5 million as
at 28 February 2002 {2001 — £290.5 million). If this goodwill were to be amortised over a
period of 20 years, operating profit for the year ended 28 February 2002 would have
decreased by £15.4 millicn (2001 - £10.4 million).

Work in progress
Work in progress comprises third party costs incurred on behalf of dlients and is stated at
the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value.

(10} Financial instruments

The costs of issue of capital instruments such as the issue costs of new debt are charged to
the profit and loss account on an annual basis over the life of the instrument.

(11) Pensions

The Group principally operates defined contribution money purchase pension schemes and
makes contributions to individual employees’ personal pension schemes. The Group's
contributions are charged against profits in the year in which contributions are made.

(12} Tax

The charge for tax is based on the results for the year and takes into account deferred tax.
Deferred tax is recognised with discounting in respect of all timing differences between the
treatment of certain items for tax and accounting purposes which have arisen and not
reversed by the balance sheet date, except as otherwise required by FRS 19.
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Notes to the financial statements

28 February 2002

2 Segmental informaticn
Classes of business

Gross profit

Prefit on ordinary

Turnover {gross revenue) activities before tax
2002 200 2002 2001 2002 2001
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Public Relations 113,867 114,115 85,479 83,292 11,456 14,881
Marketing Services 96,504 61,983 55,090 34,208 10,010 4672
Advertising 86,700 G8,367 33,345 36,618 6,321 8,139
Intra-group trading {10,802} (8,802} (3,082) (786} - -
286,269 265,663 170,832 153,332 27,787 27,792
Goodwill (5,377} (491)
Share of gperating profit of associates 26 59
Met interest payable {1,805} (681)
20,631 26,679
Exceptional restructuring costs {note 8) (8,512) -
12,119 20,679
Exceptional
restructuring costs Net assets
2002 2001 2002 2001
£000 £:000 £000 £000
Public Relations 4,980 - 52,058 55,158
Marketing Services 1,277 - 19,349 21,728
Advertising 1,427 - 15,933 8,209
Parent company and non-operational 828 - 189,912 180,022
8,512 - 271,252 265,117
The above analyses of turnover, gross profit {gross revenue), profit on ordinary activities
before tax and net assets for the year ended 28 February 2002 include the following
amounts in relation to acquisitions during the year:
Profit/{loss)
on ordinary
Gross profit activities
Turnover (gross revenue) before tax Net assets
£:000 £:000 £000 £000
Public Relations 4,073 3,363 500 780
Marketing Services 12,572 6,247 1,674 2,857
16,645 9,610 2,174 3,637
Goodwill (3,016)
Net interest payable (25)
(867}

Classes of business have been changed to more appropriately reflect the Group’s
operations with the result that Design & Branding, which was previously a separate class of
business, is now included in Marketing Services. Comparative figures for these two
divisions have been aggregated accordingly.
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Notes to the financial statements

28 February 2002

Segmental information (continued}
Geographical segments

Turnover by origin

Gross profit
{gross revenue)

Profit on ordinary
activities before tax

2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
UK 146,320 132,910 86,756 77,91 14,140 16,430
Rest of the world 150,751 141,555 87,158 76,207 13,647 11,362
Intra-group trading (10,802} (8,802) (3,082) (786) - ~
286,269 265,663 170,832 153,332 27,787 27,792
Goodwill (5,377) (491}
Share of operating profit of associates 26 53
Met interest payable {1,805) (681)
20,631 26,679
Exceptional restructuring costs {note 8} (8,512) -
12,119 26,679
Turnover by destination Exceptional
{including intra-group trading} restructuring costs Net assets
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
£'000 £000 £000 £/000 £000 £'000
UK 125,347 109,744 3,010 - 206,801 190,153
Rest of the world 171,724 164,721 5,502 - 70,451 74,964
297,071 274,465 8,512 - 277,252 265,117
Analysis of the results of acquisitions
2002 2001
Continuing Continuing
operations Acquisitions Total operations
£'000 £000 £000 £000
Turnover 269,624 16,645 286,269 265,663
Cost of sales {108,402) (7,035) (115,437) (112,331}
Gross profit {gross revenue) 161,222 9,610 170,832 153,332
Administrative expenses (including goodwil! and exceptional
restructuring costs) (147,284) (10,452) {157,736) (126,614)
Other operating income 802 - 802 583
Group operating profit before goodwill and exceptional
restructuring costs 25,613 2,174 27,787 27,792
Goodwill (2,361) (3.016) (5.377) {491)
Exceptional restructuring costs (note 8) (8,512) - (8,512) -
Group operating profit/(loss) 14,740 (842) 13,898 27,301
Share of operating profit of associates 26 - 26 59
Net interest payable (1,780) (25) (1,805) (631)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before tax 12,986 (867) 12,119 26,679

Details of acquisitions madle during the year are provided in note 27.

Other operating income

Other operating income of £802,000 (2001 - £583,000) consists of rental income from

office space which has been sub-let.
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Notes to the financial statements
28 February 2002

Employee numbers and remuneration
The average number of persons employed by the Group (including directors) during the
year, analysed by class of business, was as follows:

2002 2001
Public Relations 997 780
Marketing Services 701 468
Advertising 400 467
Head Office 41 38
2,139 1,693
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
2002 2001
£:000 £000
Wages and salaries 92,413 73,372
Social security costs 8,540 7,165
Other pension costs 2,573 2,077
103,526 82,614
Aggregate payroll costs include the following amounts in respect of the exceptional
restructuring costs disclesed in note 8:
2002 2001
£'000 £000
Wages and salaries 4,506 -
Social security costs 340 -
Other pension costs 75 -
4,921 -
The information on directors” emoiuments and share options set out on pages 100 to 105
forms part of these financial statements.
Net interest payable
2002 2601
£1000 £'000
Interest payable:
Group
- on tank loans and overdrafts 2,273 1,466
- on loan notes 420 267
- in respect of finance leases 47 33
Associates
- on bank loans and overdrafts 6 -
) 2,746 1,766
Interest receivable:
Group
- on bank deposits {938) (1,087)
Associates
—on bank deposits {3) 4
_ {941) (1,085)
1,805 681
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Notes to the financial statements
28 February 2002

7 Profit on ordinary activities before tax
Profit on ordinary activities before tax is stated after charging/{crediting):

2002 2001
£:000 £'000
Staff costs {(note 5) 103,526 82,614
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:
— owned assets 6,400 4,108
— assets held under finance leases A 196
Net loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 172 1
Rent and other operating lease rentals 11,048 7.493
Exchange (gainsylosses (222) 326
Group audit fees and expenses — KPMG Audit Pic {2001 — PricewaterhouseCoopers) 430 430
Of the Group audit fee, the parent company fee was £67,000 {2001 - £65,000).
Fees paid to KPMG Audit Plc and its associates for non-audit services were £295,000 (2001
— PricewaterhouseCoopers £279,000) of which £25,000 (2001 - £153,000) arose in the
UK. These fees alf arose prior to their appointment as auditor. Of the total non-audit fees,
£214,000 {2001 - £154,000) has been capitalised within intangible fixed assets, being
costs of acquisitions.
8 Exceptional restructuring costs
2002 2001
£7000 £000
Restructuring costs:
- redundancy (ncte 5) 4,921 -
- property 1,809 -
- other 1,782
8,512 -
Exceptional restructuring costs relate to a number of restructuring and cost reduction
programmes initiated during the year.
9 Tax on profit on ordinary activities
2002 2001
£7000 £000
UK corporation tax
Current tax on income for the year 4,912 5,480
Adjustments in respect of prior years 168 (831)
5,080 4,649
Doubie taxation relief {31} {122}
5,049 4,527
Foreign tax
Current tax on income for the year 5,727 5,542
Adiustments in respect of prior years {1.031) ar
4,696 5,541
Total current tax charge 9,745 10,068
Deferred tax {note 19)
Origination and reversal of timing differences {1,395) -
Share of associates” tax ~ - 7 g
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 8,357 10,086

Included above is a tax credit on exceptional restructuring costs amounting to
£1,281,000 (2001 - nil).
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Tax on profit on ordinary activities {continued)

Factors affecting the tax charge for the current year

The total current tax charge for the year is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK of 30% (2001 - 30%). The differences are explained below.

2002 2001
£'000 £000
Current tax reconciliation
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 12,119 26,679
Current tax at 30% (2001 — 30%) (3,636) (8,004)
Effects of:
Expenses {including goodwill) not deductible for tax purposes (2,175) (1,015)
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances (227) (119)
Utilisation of tax losses 152 -
Unrecognised tax credits in respect of overseas losses (3,491) (1,112)
Higher tax rates on overseas earnings {1.231) {650}
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous years 863 832
Total current tax charge {(9,745) (10,068}
Factors that may affect future tax charges are disclosed in note 19.
Dividend
2002 2001
£000 £7000
Final dividend proposed 3,453 2,707
Dividend receivable in respect of own shares held (19) -
3,434 2,707
A final dividend of 0.70 pence per share (2001 — 0.60 pence per share) is recommended
and, subject to approval by sharehaolders, will be paid on 15 July 2002 to shareholders on
the register as at 17 May 2002.
Earnings per share
Earnings per share has been calculated using the following:
2002 2001
Weighted Weighted
average average
Earnings number Earnings number of
£'000 of shares £000 shares
Basic EPS 3,813 466,019,938 16,471 410,086,758
Diluted EPS 3,813 514,887,844 16,471 430,419,490
Basic EPS before goodwill and exceptional restructuring costs 16,421 466,019,938 16,962 410,086,758
Diluted EPS befare goodwilt and exceptional restructuring costs 16,421 514,887,844 16,962 430,419,490
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11 Earnings per share (continued}
Reconciliations of the earnings and weighted average number of shares used in the
calculations are set out below:

2002 2001
Weighted Earnings Weighted Earnings
average per average per
Earnings number of share Earnings number of share
£'000 shares P £7000 shares p
Basic EPS 3,813 466,019,938 0.82 16,471 410,086,758 4.02
Dilutive effect of:
Opticns 7,237,251 12,178,004
Shares to be issued as
consideration for acquisitions 41,630,655 8,154,728
Diluted EPS 3,813 514,887,844 0.74 16,471 430,419,490 3.83
Earnings per share before goodwill and
exceptional restructuring costs
Basic EPS 3,813 466,019,938 0.82 16,471 410,086,758 4.02
Goodwill 5,377 491
Exceptional restructuring costs (post tax} 7,231 -
Basic EPS before goodwill and
exceptional restructuring costs 16,421 466,019,938 3.52 16,962 410,086,758 4.14
Diluted EPS 3,813 514,887,844 074 16,471 430,419,490 3.83
Goodwill 5,377 491
Exceptional restructuring costs (post tax) 7.231 -
Diluted EPS before goodwill and
exceptional restructuring costs 16,421 514,887,844 3.19 16,962 430,419,490 3.94

The EPS figures have been calculated using earnings before goodwill and exceptional
restructuring costs in order to assist the reader’s understanding of the Greup’s underlying
performance and provide comparability with the Group's peers.

12 intangible fixed assets

Geodwill
£000

Cost
At 1 March 2001 302,126
Goodwill arising on acquisitions in the year (note 27} 44,666
Net adjustment to goodwill arising on prior year acquisitions (870)
At 28 February 2002 345,922
Amortisation
At 1 March 2001 491
Charge for the year 4,250
impairment losses 1,127 )
At 28 February 2002 5,868
Net book value
At 28 February 2002 340,054
At 28 February 2001 301,635

The net adjustrment to goodwill arising on prior year acquisitions comprises a net decrease to
consideration payable of £1,157,000 and fair value adjustments of £287,000.
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13 Tangible fixed assets

Group Freehold Fixtures,

and long Short fittings,

leasehald leasebold vehicles &

property property equipment Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 March 2001 562 7,590 20,068 28,220
Acquisitions - 212 1,894 2,106
Additions 95 2,493 4,268 6,856
Disposals (109} {122) (3,540} (3,771
Foreign exchange 11 43 224 278
At 28 February 2602 559 10,216 22,914 33,689
Depreciation
At 1 March 2001 144 3,011 9,976 13,131
Charge for the year 187 1,114 5,170 6,471
Disposals 17 {95) (2,842) (2,954)
Foreign exchange - 13 189 202
At 28 February 2002 314 4,043 12,493 16,850
Net book value
At 28 February 2002 245 6,173 10,421 16,839
At 28 February 2001 418 4,579 10,092 15,089
The net book value of assets at 28 February 2002 includes an amcunt of £667,000 in
respect of assets held under finance leases (28 February 2001 - £770,000).
Company Freehold Fixtures,

and long Short fittings,

leasehold leasehold vehicles &

property property eguipment TJotal

£'000 £000 £'000 £000

Cost
At 1 March 2001 386 3,651 3,368 7,405
Additions 32 1,321 560 1,913
Teansfers from subsidiary undertakings - - 61 61
Transfers to subsidiary undertakings {109) - - (109}
Q_isposals - - (1,044) (1,044)
At 28 February 2002 309 4,972 2,945 8,226
Depreciation
At 1 March 2001 ] 20 1,784 2,017 3,821
Charge for the year 17 436 675 1,128
Transfers from subsidiary undertakings - - 52 52
Transfers to subsidiary undertakings (17) - - {17)
lﬁ)»iﬁspﬁqsa Is - - (1,044) (1,044}
AL 28 February 2002 20 2,220 1,700 3,940
Net book value
At 28 February 2002 289 2,752 1,245 4,286
At 28 February 2001 366 1,867 1,351 3,584
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14 Fixed asset investments

Group - Investmant Other investments
in associates Own shares Other Total
£/000 £/000 £'000 £000
At 1 March 2001 70 - 711 71
Additions - 974 - 974
Reclassification of own shares held from Other debtors - 14 - 14
Share of profits less dividends for the year 9 - - -
Fereign exchange (1) - - -
Provision for permanent diminution in value - - (630} (630)
At 28 February 2002 78 988 81 1,069
The investment in associates represents the Group'’s 40% holding in Capital
Communications Kft and 34% holding in NBS Spolka z.0.0., public relations consultancies
registered in Hungary and Poland respectively. The carrying value of the investment in
associates equates to the Group’s share of net assets and does not include any goodwill.
The Group's investment in own shares is stated at cost and represents 2,706,965 of the
Company’s ordinary shares {nominal value of 1 pence per share) held by employee share
trusts. The trusts purchase shares on the open market for the benefit of emplayees using
funds provided by the Company. Further details of these trusts are contained on pages
98 to 105. The market value of own shares at 28 Feruary 2002 was £1,245,000.
The amount shown as other investments represents the Company’s investment in Openshop
Holding AG, a German technology company, It is a listed investrment on an overseas stock
exchange and is shown at market value at 28 February 2002.
Company Investment in
subsidiary Other investments
undertakings Own shares Cther Total
£:000 £/000 £7000 £:000
At 1 March 2001 287,898 - 71 711
Additions 29,522 974 - 974
Transfers from subsidiary undertakings 266,545 - - -
Transfers to subsidiary undertakings (110,911) - - -
Provision for permanent diminution in value (5,354) - (630) {630}
At 28 February 2002 467,700 974 81 1,055
Loans to Group undertakings are included in debtors.
Principal subsidiary undertakings and associates are listed in note 31. A full list of subsidiary
undertakings and associates will be annexed to the Company’s next annual return.
The Company’s investment in own shares is stated at cost and represents 2,023,337 of the
Company’s ordinary shares (nominai value of 1 pence per share) held by employee share
trusts. The trusts purchase shares on the open market for the benefit of employees using
funds provided by the Company. Further details of these trusts are contained cn pages 98
to 105. The market value of own shares at 28 February 2002 was £930,000.
15 Debtors
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 200t
£7000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors 47,975 52,886 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 34,671 22,916
Arnourrts owed by associates — dividends receivable 1 34 - -
Corporation tax 1,021 672 262 761
Withholding tax recoverable 104 135 - -
Deferred tax asset {note 19) 2,804 - - -
Other debtors 3,161 2,004 655 354
Prepayments and accrued income 4,894 4,847 325 419
59,970 60,578 35,913 24,450
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 54,575 51,090
59,970 60,578 90,488 85,540
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creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Cempany
2002 2001 2002 2001
£'000 £000 £'000 £/000
Loan notes (note 18) 21,453 14,660 21,453 14,642
Obligations under finance leases 145 474 - 7
Trade crediters 17,887 19,980 273 586
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - 172,908 16,121
Amounts owead to associates — trading balances 28 13 - -
Corporation tax 6,871 7,988 - -
Other taxes and social security 4,911 5,295 1,354 958
Preposed dividend 3,434 2,702 3,439 2,707
Other creditors 3,944 5,564 808 112
Consideration for acquisitions 10,086 - 9,172 -
Accruals and deferred incorme 34,549 31,245 6,329 7,403
103,308 87,921 215,736 42,536
Included within Other creditors for the Group is £179,000 (2001 — £100,000) relating to
liabifities and accrued obligations of the Citigate Cornmunications Group Limited Employee
Share Trust, representing its income tax liability, accrued professional fees and a provision
against future commitments.
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£000 £000 £'000 £7000
Bank loans 29,525 23,527 29,525 23,527
Loan notes (note 18) 1,327 - 1,327 -
Obligations under finance leases 89 128 - -
Corporation tax a7 423 - -
Other creditors 574 467 - -
31,612 24,545 30,852 23,527
Banrk loans are stated net of unamortised issue costs of £475,000 (2001 — £473,000}. Issue
costs of £131,000 were incurred in respect of the borrowing facilities described in note 26.
They are allocated to the profit and loss account over the five year term of the facilities on
a straight line basis. Issue costs of £128,000 (2001 - £62,000) were charged 1o the profit
and loss account during the yaar.
Loan notes
Loan notes have been issued as part of the consideration for certain acquisitions. Secured
loan notes are secured either on cash deposits, by guarantee or by way of a charge over
the minority interests acquired. Cash deposits provided as security are included within cash
at bank and in hand. Loan notes bear interest at the following rates:
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
Secured
Bank base rate plus 0.25% 435 736 435 736
Banik bid rate less 1.15% - 2 - 2
LIBOR less 1.5% 2,963 - 2,963 -
Bank base rate less 2.5% 15,488 12,326 15,488 12,326
Elil 1,327 - 1,327 -
20,213 13,064 20,213 13,064
Unsecured
_Bank base rate less 1.5% 2,567 1,596 2,567 1,578
22,780 14,660 22,780 14,642
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19 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Group Contingent
consideration Deferred
for acquisitions tax Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £'000
At 1 March 2001 33,383 - 530 33,913
Paid during the year (3,700) - - (3,700}
Settied by issue of loan notes (2,267) - - (2,267)
Net movement in estimated contingent consideration
payable for acquisitions in prior years 3,275 - - 3,275
Other adjustments in relation to acgquisitions in prior years - - 305 305
Fstimated contingent consideration payable for current year acquisitions 6,246 - - 6,246
Amounts arising from acquisitions in the year - 94 - 94
Transferred (to)from Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (9,305) 304 - (9,001)
Charged/credited) to profit and loss account - 1,409 (280) 1,129
At 28 February 2002 27,632 1,807 555 29,994
Company Contingent
consideration Deferred
for acquisitions tax Other Total
£'000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 March 2001 32,680 - 530 33,210
Paid during the year (3,449) - - (3,449)
Settled by issue of loan notes (2,267 - - {2,267)
Net movement in estimated contingent consideration
payable for acquisitions in prior years 2,592 - - 2,592
Estimated contingent consideration payable for current year acguisilions 5,996 - - 5,996
Transferred to Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (S,100) - - {3,100)
Charged/{credited) to profit and loss account - 118 (280) (162)
At 28 February 2002 26,452 118 250 26,820
Contingent consideration for acquisitions
Acquisitions made by the Group typically involve an earn-cut arrangement whereby the
consideration payable includes a deferred element that is contingent cn the future financial
performance of the acquired entity. No material contingent consideration will become
payable unless the acquired entity delivers greater revenues or profits during the earn-out
period than prior 1o acquisition.
The provision for contingent censideration for acquisitions represents the directors’ best
estimate of the amount expected to be payable in cash or ioan notes. The estimated value
of contingent consideration payable by issue of new ordinary shares in the Company of
£54.6 million (2001 — £66.4 miilion} is included in the balance sheet within Shares to be
issued (note 21).
Maturity of contingent consideration for acquisitions
Group Company
Cash or Shares to Cash or Shares to
loan notes be issued {oan notes be issued
£000 £000 £000 £000
In one year or less 5,099 6,167 4,949 6,167
In more than one year but not more than two years 12,215 34,991 12,037 34,991
In more than two years but not more than five years 10,318 13,489 9,466 13,489
27,632 54,647 26,452 54,647
The directors estimate that, in delivering the future financial performance required for the
above amounts to become payable, the acquired entities will generate £47 4 million of
operating cash inflows.

in addition to the above amounts, Creditors falling due within one year and Shares to be
issued include consideration for acquisitions of £10.1 millien (2001 - nil} and £13.5 million
(2001 - £0.9 million} respectively in respect of completed earn-aut periods for which
consideration (payable in either cash, loan notes or by the issue of new shares) has become
due but has not yet been settled as at 28 February 2002.

Details of each acquisition made during the current year are set out in note 27,
The maximurn potential contingent cash and loan note consideration payable under all
earn-out arrangements ongoing as at 28 February 2002 is £87.8 million.
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19 Provisions for liabilities and charges (continued)

Deferred tax
The elements of deferred tax are as follows:

Group Company

2002 2001 2002 2001

£:000 £°000 £000 £000
Difference between accumulated depreciation/amortisation and
tax depreciation (2,722} - {118) -
Other timing differences 1,287 - - _
Tax losses 1,517 _ - =
Undiscounted net deferred tax asset/(liability) 82 - (118) _
Effect of discounting 915 _ - _
Discounted net deferred tax asset/liability) 997 - {118) -
The net deferred tax asset /liability) comprises:
Deferred tax asset (note 15) 2,804 — . _
Deferred tax fiability (1,807) - (118} -

987 - (118} -
The movements on deferred tax are as follows:

Group

Asset Liability

£000 £000
At 1 March 2001 - -
Acquisitions - (94)
Reclassification from Creditors - {304)
Credit/{charge) to profit and loss account 2,804 (1,409)
At 28 February 2002 2,804 (1,807)

The impact of applying FRS19 to prior years is immaterial, therefore no prior year
adjustment has been made.

During the current year, a reorganisation of the Group’s US companies has given rise to an
ability to more efficiently utilise tax losses arising in the US. This has resulted in a deferred
tax asset being recognised in respect of US trading losses to the extent that it is more likely
than not that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which these losses can be offset.

At 28 February 2002, in addition to the deferred tax balances recognised abave, the Group
had potential deferred tax assets of £6,540,000 (2001 - £1,283,000) in relation to
allowable tax losses and £nil (2001 — £647,000) in relation to timing differences. These
assets have not been recognised in the financial staternents as, in the opinion of the
directars, there is insufficient evidence that they will be recoverable.

Other

Other provisions comprise a provision for employer’s National Insurance on unapproved
share options granted since 6 April 1999 (Group and Company) and a provision for the
unfunded liability on an overseas pension scheme (Group). This pensicn scheme relates te
one individual and provides, on retirement, a fixed predetermined pensicn that is neither
linked to final salary nor subject to any increases. The Group’ liakility under this scheme is
substantially covered by an insurance policy. The liability has been determined using a
discount rate of 6% by & qualified actuary as at 28 February 2002. The Group's contribution
to the scheme for the year was £29,500.
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20 Called up share capital

2002 2001
£000 £:000
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 1p each 910,000,000 {2001 - 610,000,000} 9,100 6,100
Allotted and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 1p each 471,584,047 (2001 - 448,656,576} 4,716 4,487

Pursuant to an ordinary resclution passed at the Company’s Annual General Meeting on

6 July 2001, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from £6,100,000
to £9,100,000 by the creation of 300,000,000 ordinary shares of 1 pence each to rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of 1 pence each of the Company.

During the year 11,903,491 shares were issued as initial consideration for the acquisitions
of First Financial Communications B.V., Gunpowder Srl, Karen Earl Limited, Media Strategy,
Inc., and Media Strategy Training Centre, Inc., Global Intelligence & Security, LLC,
Admaster, Inc., and Masterapproach, LLC.

A total of 8,307,757 shares were issued as deferred consideration for the acquisitions of
Ballard & King Communications, Key Communications Limited, Su Yeang Design Pte
Limited, DVL Smith Group Limited, Oaktree Communications (Pty) Limited and 5% of SEA
Dewe Rogerson GmbH, made during prior years.

A total of 2,333,447 shares were issued during the year under the Company’s share option
schemes for total consideration of £357,000,

The Company cffered the shareholders the option to receive Qrdinary shares instead of a
cash dividend. As a result, on 6 July 2001 the company issued 382,776 shares as a scrip
dividend alternative.

Subsequent to the year end 199,07 . shares were issued as deferred consideration for the
acquisition of Beaumark Limited and 5% of SEA Dewe Rogerson GmbH, and 421,950
shares were issued under the Company’s share option schemes.

The total number of shares in issue as at 7 May 2002 is 472,205,067

Further shares are to be issued, subject to future financial performance, as consideration
for acquisitions. The estimated value of these shares is included in Shares to be issued at
28 February 2002 {(note 21).

The Company has shareholder authority to purchase its own shares, to a maximum of
45,123,377 shares.

Options
As at 28 February 2002, certain employees including directors held options over ordinary
shares of 1p under the following schemes:

Options held Exercise prices

2002 2001 {per share} Exercise periods {various dates)
Employee Share Option Scheme 1,956,000 2,596,000 10.5p to 31.0p Up to 29 October 2007
£xecutive Share Option Plan 6,395,000 6,535,000 232501012900 Between 22 September 2001 and 16 October 2011
Executive Long Term Incentive Plan 10,024,000 3,174,000 35.75p to 129.0p Between 20 October 2003 and 16 October 2011
1998 Savings Related Share Option Scheme 228,163 1,961,695 15.2p Between 1 January 2002 and 31 December 2002
1999 Savings Related Share Option Scheme 1,031,475 1,522,786 47.0p to 50.0p Between 1 January 2002 and 30 June 2003
2000 Savings Related Share Option Scheme 511,537 1,227,967 103.6p 10 139.5p Between 1 January 2003 and 30 June 2004
2001 Savings Related Share Option Scheme 1,212,187 - 29.50 10 38.95p Between 1 January 2004 and 30 June 2005

22,058,362 17,017,448

A total of 9,036,726 options were granted, 2,351,138 exercised and 1,644,674 lapsed
during the year under the above schemes. Further details are shown in the statement of
directors’ remuneration and interests on pages 100 to 105.
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Reserves
Group Share
premium Shares to Merger Profit and
account be issued reserve loss account
£7000 £000 £'000 £7000
At 1 March 2001 33,789 67,277 123,710 35,654
Retained profit for the year - - - 379
Exchange differences on foreign currency net investments - - - (304)
Contribution to Qualifying Employee Share Trust - - - (571)
Premium on shares issued as consideration for acquisitions 3,538 - 6,948 -
Premium on shares issued under share option schemes 904 - - -
Premium on shares issued in respect of scrip dividend 314 - - -
Share issue costs (3) -~ 73) -
Net movement in estimated value of shares to be issued as consideration
for acquisitions - 897 - -
At 28 February 2002 38,542 68,174 130,585 35,158
Shares to be issued comprises £13,527,000 of consideration for acquisitions in respect of
completed earn-out periods for which consideration is due but not yet settled as at
28 February 2002, and £54,647,000 of consideration for acquisitions contingent on future
financial performance (note 19).
A merger reserve has been created in relation to 12,654,563 shares issued during the year
as consideration for acquisitions, as permitted by section 131 of the Companies Act 1985.
Curmnulative goodwill relating to acguisitions made up to and including 28 February 1998,
which has been eliminated against reserves, amounts to £46,259,000 (2001 —
£46,259,000).
Company Share
premium Shares to Merger Profit and
accotnt be issued reserve loss account
£000 £000 £/000 £7000
At 1 March 2001 33,789 67,277 169,077 13,863
Retained loss for the year - - - (677)
Contribution te Qualifying Employee Share Trust - - - (571}
Premium on shares issued as consideration for acquisitions 3,538 - 6,948 -
Premium on shares issued under share option schemes 04 - - -
Premium cn shares issued in respect of scrip dividend 314 - - -
Share isste costs 3) - (73} -
Net movement in estimated value of shares to be issued as consideration
for acquisitions - 897 - -
At 28 February 2002 38,542 68,174 175,852 12,615
Minority interests
£/000
At 1 March 2001 200
Minority intarests' share of results for the year (51
Minority interests' share of dividends 66}
Minority interests’ share of exchange differences on foreign currency net investments (6)
At 28 February 2002 77




88 Incepta Group ple Financial Statemants 2002

Notes to the financial statements
28 February 2002

23 Analysis of cash flows

24

2002 2001
£:000 £000
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 927 1,075
Interest paid (2,619) {(1,698)
Issue costs of new bank loans (131) {525)
Interest element of finance lease payments 47) (33)
Dividends paid to minority interests (66} (22}
(1,936) (1,203)
Taxation
UK tax paid (6,432) (5,874}
Overseas tax paid (4,631} (4,620)
{11,063) {9,894)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (6,750} {5,317)
Disposal of tangible fixed assets 645 81
Purchase of other fixed asset investment (273) {711)
(6,378} {5,947)
Acquisitions
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings {13,283} (38,915)
Purchase of businesses (6.988) (744}
Net cash acquired with subsidiary undertakings and businesses 2,199 6,406
(18,072) (33,253}
Financing
Issue of shares:
Proceeds from issue of ordinary snare capita 363 20,578
Share issue costs (76) (967)
287 19,611
Increase in debt:
Repayment of bank loans (17,000} (36,974)
Draw-down of bank loans 23,000 42,000
Capital element of finance lease payments (541) (397)
Repayment of loan notes (696} {114)
4,763 4,515
5,050 24,126

Acquisitions

The cash flow In respect of acquisitions includes outflows of £4,973,000 within purchase
of subsidiary undertakings and £154,000 within purchase of businesses relating to
acquisitions made during prior years.

Acquisitions during the year accounted for £2,745,000 (2001 - £7,786,000) of cash flow
from operating activities, £160,000 (2001 - £3,138,000) of taxetion, and £308,000 (2001
- £1,858,000) of capital expenditure in the year. These amounts represent the cash flows
of all acquisitions except Beaumark Limited, MSi Strategy Communications, Admaster, Inc.,
and Masterapproach, LLC, as their cash flows are not separately identifiable from the cash
flows of continuing operations.

Exceptional restructuring costs
Cash inflow from operating activities includes an outflow of £4,663,000 (2001 - £81,000}
in respect of exceptional restructuring costs {note 8}

Major non-cash transactions
Part of the consideration for acquisitions during the year comprised shares. Further details
are set out In note 27,
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25 Analysis of net debt

At 1 March Acquisitions Exchange Other At 28 February
2001 Cash flows (excluding cash} movements movements 2002
£°000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 29,493 (9,110} - (589) - 19,794
Loan notes
— amounts falling due within cne year (14,660} 696 - - {7,489) {21,453}
- amounts falling due after mere than one year - - - - (1,327) (1,327}
Bank loans
~ amounts falling due after more than one year  (23,527) (5,869) - - (129) {29,525)
Finance leases
- amounts falling due within one year (474} 434 (35) {3) (67) (145}
- amounts falling due after more than one year (128) 107 (28) (2) (38) (89)
{9,296) (13,742) (63) (594) {9,050} (32,745)
Other mavements comprise loan notes issued as consideration for acquisitions,
amortisation of loan issue costs and inception of finance leases, together with transfers
between ageing categories.
Financial instruments
The Group’s financial instruments comprise cash at bank and in hand, borrowings in the
form of loan notes, bank loans and finance leases, consideration for acquisitions and
various items such as trade debtors and trade creditors that arise directly from its
operations. As permitted by FRS 13: ‘Derivatives and other financial instruments:
disclosures’, short-term debtors and creditors have been excluded from all financial
instrument disclosures other than currency exposure disclosures.
The Group's policies and strategies in refation to risk and financial instruments are
explained in the Financia! review on page 49. Accounting policies relevant to financial
instruments are detailed in note 1(10).
The Group does not currently enter into any hedging arrangements involving derivative
financial instruments.
Interest rate risk profile of financial liabilities
As at 28 February 2002:
Financial
Fioating rate Fixed rate liabilities
financial financial on which no
liahilities liabilities  interest is paid Total
Currency £000 £7000 £:000 £000
Sterling 50,978 91 20,599 71,668
EU currencies {excluding Sterling) - - 16,642 16,642
US dollars - 72 1,804 1,876
Other currencies - 71 - 1
50,978 234 39,045 90,257

Fixed rate financial liabilities

Weighted
average

Weighted average
period for which

Financial liabilities
on which no
interest is paid
Weighted average

interest rate rate is fixed period until maturity

Currency Yo Maonths Months
Sterling 9.4 14 14
EU currencies (exciuding Sterling) - - 16
Us dollars 1.7 17 15
Cther currencies 35 38 -
83 22 15
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26 Financial instruments (continued)
Interest rate risk profile of financial liabilities {continued)
As at 28 February 2001:

Financial
Floating rate Fixed rate {iabilities
financial financial on which no
Viabilities fiabilities  interest is paid Total
Currency £000 £600 £'000 £000
Sterling 38,187 238 16,206 54,631
EU currencies (excluding Sterling) - . - 8,800 2,800
US dollars - 336 2,326 2,662
Other currencies - 28 5,051 5,079
38,187 602 33,383 72,172
Fixed rate finandial liabilities Financiat liabilities
on which no
Weighted Weighted average interest is paid
average period for which Weighted average
interest rate rate is fixed period unti! maturity
Currency % Months Months
Sterling 9.8 15 18
EU currencies {excluding Sterling) - - 26
US doallars 9.3 14 27
Other currencies 7.0 34 12
9.4 16 20
Interest rate risk profile of financial assets
2002 2001
Other fixed Cash at Other fixed Cash at
asset bank and asset bank and
investments in hand Total investment in hand Total
Currency £'000 £'000 £°000 £'G00 £'000 E£'060
Sterling 988 10,405 11,393 - 13,563 13,563
EU currencies {excluding Sterling) 81 5,969 6,050 711 10,067 10,778
UsS dollars - 1,517 1,517 - 2,939 2,939
Other currencies - 1,903 1,903 - 2,924 2,924
1,069 19,794 20,863 711 25,493 30,204
Ne interest 1,069 1,080 2,149 711 1,652 2,363
Fioating rate - 18,465 18,465 - 27,785 27,785
Fixed rate - 249 249 - 56 56
1,069 19,794 20,863 711 29,493 30,204
Cash at bank and in hand includes deposits placed with banks on money markets at
overnight rates.
Maturity of group financial liabilities
2002 2001
Borrowings Consideration Borrowings  Consideration
and finance for and finance for
leases acquisitions Total leases acquisitions Total
£°000 £'000 £°000 £°000 £000 £'000
In one year cr less or cn demand 21,598 15,185 36,783 15,134 6,010 21,144
In more than one year but not more than two years o7 12,215 12,282 110 8,408 8,518
In more than two years but not more than five years 30,874 10,318 41,192 23,545 18,965 42,510

52,539 37,718 90,257 38,789 33,383 72,172
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26 Financial instruments (continued)

Maturity of Company borrowings and finance leases
Company borrowings including bank loans, lcan notes, and obligations under finance
leases, fall due as follows:

2002 2001
£000 £7000

In one year or less ar on demand 21,453 14,649
In more than two years but not more than five years 30,852 23,527

52,305 38,176
Borrowing facilities
The Group had an undrawn committed facility of £45.0 million available at 28 February
2002 (2001 — £51.0 million) in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met at
that date. This relates to an unsecured £75.0 million five year revolving foan multi-currency
facility arranged through Lloyds TSB Bank plc which bears interest of between 19 and
1.5% above LIBOR and expires in Septernber 2005. In early May 2002 this facility was
increased from £75.0 million to £92.5 million. All other terms and conditions remain
unchanged.
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
The fair values of primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the Group’s
operations, as determined by market values or calculated by discounting expected future
cash flows at prevailing interest rates, were not materially different to their carrying values
as at 28 February 2002 and 28 February 2001.
Currency exposures
The Group's objectives in managing the structural currency exposures arising from its net
investments overseas are explained in the Financial review on page 49. Gains and losses
arising from these currency exposures are recognised in the statement of total recognised
gains and losses. The table below shows the Group's transactional currency exposuras that
give rise to the net currency gains and losses recognised in the profit and loss account.
Such exposures arise from monetary assets and monetary liabilities of the Group that are
not denominated in the operating currency of the operating unit involved.
As at 28 February 2002:

Net foreign currency monetary assets/(tiabilities}
EU currencies
{exciuding Other
Functional currency Sterling Sterling) US dollars currencies Total
of Group operation £000 £7000 £000 £:000 £000
Sterling - (11,665) 8,456 (762} (3,971
EU currencies (excluding Sterling) (119) - (4) - {123)
US dollars (22) 6 - - (16)
Other currencies 2 - 140 {535) (393}
Total (139) (11,659) 8,592 (1,297) (4,503)
As at 28 February 2001:
Net foreign currency monetary assets/(liabilities)
EU currencies
{excluding Other

Functional currency Sterling Sterling) US dollars currencies Total
of Group operaticn £'000 £000 £'000 £°000 £°000
Sterling - (1,976) (957) (267} {3,200}
EU currencies {exciuding Sterling) (35 - 8 - (27)
Us dollars (51) (46) - - (97)
Other currencies 60 - (321) - {261)
Total (26) (2,022) {1,270) (267) (3,585)
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27 Acquisitions
Effective 1 March 2001, the Company purchased the entire issued share capital of
Beaurnark Limited, a UK public affairs company, for initial consideration of £50,000 paid in
cash. A maxirmum deferred consideration ¢of £150,000 is payable 33% in cash and 67% in
new ordinary shares of the Company, dependent on future financial performance.

Also effective 1 March 2001, the Company purchased the entire issued share capital of First
Financial Communications B.V., an integrated financial communications consultancy in
The Netherlands. Initial consideration comprised NLG7.5m in cash and 2,155,456 new
ordinary shares in the Company. Maximum deferred consideration payable subject to future
financial performance amounts to NiG10.5m, of which NLG5,25m is payable in cash.

The Group acquired the business and assets of Media Strategy, Inc. and Media Strategy
Training Center, Inc., together known as MSI Strategy Communications, a Chicago based
communications consultancy, effective 1 May 2001. Initial consideration amcunted to
US$728,000 in cash and 963,545 new ordinary shares in the Company. Subject to future
financial performance, a maximum deferred consideration of US$1.6 million will be paid, of
which U$$832,000 is payable in cash.

Effective 1 June 2001, the Company acquired the business and assets of Gunpowder Srl,
a Milan-based integrated marketing services company, for initial consideration of

Lire 11.7 billion in ¢ash and 4,214,666 in new ordinary shares in the Company. A
maximum deferred consideration of Lire 19.2 billion will be paid, of which up to Lire 8.6
billion is payable in cash, dependent upon the company’s future financial performance.

Effective 1 August 2001, the Company acquired 100% of the share capital of Karen £arl
Limited and Redmandarin Limited, twe leading UK sponscrship cansultancies.

Karen Earl Limited was purchased for initial consideration of £1,78%,000 in loan notes and
1,845,288 in new ordinary shares in the Company. Further constderation of £48,000 in
new ordinary shares and £72,000 in loan notes is payable in July 2002. Subject to future
financial performance a maximum deferred consideration of £3,480,000 will be paid in
loan notes and/or new ordinary shares n the Company at its discretion.

Redmandarin Limited was purchased for initial consideration of £470,000 in loan notes
and £80,000 in cash. Dependent upon future financial performance, a maximum
deferred consideration of £2,950,000 will be paid in new ordinary shares in the
Company and/or loan notes at its discretion.

Also effective 1 August 2001, the Group acquired The Wire Telephone Interviewing
Services Limited, a UK company, for initial consideration of £1. A maximum deferred
consideration of £473,000 will be paid in cash subject to future financial performance.

The Group purchased the trade and assets of Admaster, Inc, and Masterapproach, LLC,
two New York based advertising and marketing services companies, effective 1 August
2001, Initial consideration was US$2,612,000 in new ordinary shares in the Company, of
which US$1,306,000 are to be issued in January 2003, and cash of U5%2,612,000.

The Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Sanchis Cormunicacion S.L., !
HM y Sanchis Consultores de Comunicacion, 5.L. and Sanchis Communicagao Consultores

de Imagem e Communicacao, Ltda, effective 1 September 2001, a communications network

in Spain and Portugal. The Company paid Euro 4,492,000 as initial consideration in cash. .
Dependent upon future financial perforrmance, a maximum deferred consideration of Euro !
15,943,000 1s payable in cash and/or new ordinary shares of the Company at its discretion.

Effective 1 October 2001, the Company acquired 100% of the issued share capital of
Hauck Research Services Limited, a UK research consultancy, for initial consideration of
£1,037,000 in cash and foan notes of £2,963,000. A maximum deferred consideration of
£8,350,000 is payable in cash, loan notes and new ordinary shares in the Company subject
to the future financial performance of the company.

The Group purchased the trade and assets of Tangozebra Limited, ar online digital
marketing agency based in London, effective 6 November 2001, for consideration of
£111,000 in cash.

Effective 1 January 2002, the Group acquired Global Intelligence & Security, LLC, a recently
incorperated US business operating in the field of business intelligence. Initial consideration
comprised US$3.0 millior in cash and 764,459 new ordinary shares in the Company.
Maximum future consideration of 1S$40.5m is payable, subject to future financial
performance, in cash or a mixture of cash and shares at the discretion of the Company.

Goodwill arising on all acquisitions in the year has been capitalised (note 12).
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Acquisitions (continued)
The aggregated book values and fair values of assets and liabilities acquired as a result of

these acquisitions wera as foflows: Fair value
Book value adjustments Fair value
£'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets 2,184 (78) 2,106
Work in progress 5 - 5
Debtors 4,533 (292) 4,241
Obligations under finance leases (63) - (63)
Net cash at bank and in hand 2,199 - 2,199
Creditors {6,482) (153) (6,635)
Provisions (94) - {94)
2,282 (523) 1,759
Goodwill 44,666
Total cost 46,425
The fair vaiue adjustments to tangible fixed assets were made to ensure consistency of
accounting policies. The net fair value adjustment to debtors reflects write downs to
estimated realisabrle value and an adjustment to ensure consistency of accounting policies.
The fair value adjustment to creditors represents accruals for unrecorded liabilities. All fair
values are provisional awaiting final determination of the balances acquired.
No material fair value adjustments were made during the year in respect of acquisitions in
prior years.
Related party transactions
The Group and its asscciates during the year carried out consultancy work on behalf of each
other’s clients. Aggregate amounts included in turnover and cost of sales in the consolidated
prefit and loss account in respect of these transactions were: Capital Communications Kft
(Turnover: £5,000; Cost of sales: nil}, NBS Spolka z.o.0. (Turnover: nil; Cost of sales: £64,000).
There was a dividend of £11,000 due from Capital Communications Kft of which £6,000
relates to the current year, and a trading balance of £28,000 due to NBS Spolka z.0.0. as at
28 February 2002.
There were no further related party transactions during the year.
Commitments
Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
2002 2001
Land and Land and
huildings Other buildings Other
£'000 £000 £7000 £'000
Group
Operating leases which expire:
within one year 662 181 1,503 128
within two to five years 6,778 331 4,454 275
after five years 2,501 18 5,169 62
9,941 530 11,126 465
Company
Operating leases which expire:
within one year - - 218 4
within two to five years - 9 - -
- 9 218 4

Contingencies

Consideration for acquisitions

Under the terms of certain acquisition agreements, additional consideration is payable by
the Company and certain of its subsidiary undertakings centingent on the future financial
performance of the acquired entities. The estimated amount of such contingent
consideration is included in provisions and shares to be issued (notes 19 and 21).

Guarantees

In connection with the Group’s banking and berrowing facilities with Lloyds TSB Bank plc
{note 26), the Company and certain of its subsidiary undartakings have entered into cross-
guarantee and indemnity arrangements with Lloyds TSB Bank pic, HSBC Bank pic, The
Chase Manhattan Bank, Scotiabank Europe plc and The Co-operative Bank plc.
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Principal subsidiary undertakings and associates

Country of incarporation/ Directly owned
Name principal operation by the Company Class of business
Principal subsidiary undertakings at 28 February 2002
Citigate Dewe Rogerson Limited England PR
- Citigate Technolcgy! England PR
Citigate Public Affairs Limited (formerly Citigate Westminster Limited) England PR
Citigate DVL Smith Limited England v PR
Citigate Communications Limited {(formerly Key Communications Limited)  England v PR
Citigate MARCHCom Limited England v PR
Citigate Albert Frank Limited England Ady
Finex Communications Group plc England v MS
Dynamao Marketing Limited England v MS
Hauck Research Services Limited England v MS
JKD Communications Limited England v MS
Karen Ead Sponscrship Limited England v MS
Park Avenue Productions plc England v MS
The ReD Consultancy Group Limited England v MS
Redmandarin Limited England v MS
Citigate Lloyd Northover Limited England MS
Citigate Publishing Limited England MS
Incepta Online Limited England v H
Citigate SMARTS Limited Scotland PR, Adv, MS
Citigate Northern Ireland Limited Northern Ireland PR, MS
Citigate Heldings GmbH Germany v H
Citigate Dewe Rogerson GmbH Garmany # PR
Citigate SEA GmbH & Co KG Germany Adv
Citigate Demuth GmbH Germany PR, Adv, MS
Citigate Gramma AB Sweden v PR
Citigate Jtalia Sn Itaty v Adv
Citigate Gunpowder Srl ltaly v MS
Citigate Sanchis Spain v PR
Citigate First financial The Netherlands v PR
Incepta Group InC UsA v H
Citigate inc USA
- Citigate Albert Frank? USA Advy, MS
Citigate Sard Verbinnen Inc USA PR
Citigate Cunningham Inc USA PR
Citigate Dewe Rogerson Inc USA PR
Citigate Global Intelligence & Security, LLC USA PR
Citigate Hudson Inc Usa PR
Citigate Broad Street In¢ USA MS
Citigate Asia Limited Hong Kong
- Citigate Dewe Rogersen3 Hong Kong PR
- Citigate Lioyd Northover? Hong Kong MS
Citigate Window Creative Limited Hong Kong Adv
Citigate Dewe Rogerson i.MAGE Pte Lid Singapore 7/ PR
Citigate Su Yeang Design Pte Ltd Singapore v MS
Citigate Dewe Rogerson Communications Private Limited India " PR
Citigate South Africa (Pty) Limited South Africa PR, Adv, M5
Associates at 28 February 2002
Capital Cormmunications Kft Hungary N/A PR
NBS Spolka z.0.0. Poland A PR
! Trades as a division of Citigate Dewe Rogerson Limited PR = Pubhc Refations
2 Trades as a division of Citigate Inc Adv = Advertising
3 Trades as a dwision of Citigate Asia Limited MS = Marketing Services
* Qwned 5% directly and 95% indirectly H = Holding Company

All of the above subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned with the exception of Citigate
Dernuth GmbH (80 2% owned) and Citigate Window Creative Lirmited {85% owrned).

All subsidiary undertakings and associates have financial year ends which are coterminous
with that of Incepta Group plc with the exception of Capital Communications Kit and NBS
Spolka z.c.0. which have 31 December year ends.
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Report of the independent auditors

report of the independent auditors to the members of Incepta Group plc
we have audited the financial statements on pages 68 to 94.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors’ report and, as described on page 68,
the financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting
standards. Our responsibilities, as independent auditors, are established in the United
kingdom by statute, the Auditing Practices Board, the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authority, and by our profession’s ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair
view and are properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report
to you if, in our opinion, the directors’ report is not consistent with the financial statements,
if the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received ali the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if infermation specified by law,

or the Listing Rules, regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions with the Group

is not disclosed.

Wwe review wiether the staternent on pages 96 to 97 reflects the Company's compliance with
the seven provisions of the Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules, and
we report if it does not. We are not required to consider whether the board's statements an
internat control caver all risks and controls, or to form an opirion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s corporate governance procedures or its risks and control procedures.

we read the other information accompanying the financial statements and consider
whether it is consistent with those statements. We consider the implicaticns for our
report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies
with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, en a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's
arcumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclesed.

we planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations
whiich we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance that the finandial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or ather irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overalt adeguacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and Group as &t 28 February 2002 and of the profit of the Group for the year then
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985,

N it

KPMG Audit Plc ™
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
London

7 May 2002
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The Group is commitied 10 high standards of corporate governance. The board 1s accountable to
the Company's sharehclders for good governance.

Statement of compliance

The board has reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code of Best Practice as set out in
Section 1 of the Combined Code annexed to the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority
{"the Combined Code’). The board confirms that, throughout the year ended 28 February 2002,
the Company has been in compliance with Section 1 of the Combined Code and guidance
issuad by the Turnbull Committee relating to provision D.2.1 of that Code.

Application of principles of good governance

Board of directors

The board is responsible for leading and controliing the Group. All of the major decisions
affecting the Group are made by the board induding those relating to corporate strategy,
operating pelicy, board appeintments and all investment decisions. Board meetings foilow a
formal agenda of matters specifically reserved tor decision by the board. Each beard member
receives monthly trading results, including a comprehensive review and analysis. Prior to each
board meeting, directors are sent an agenda and a full set of board papers for each agenda item
to be discussed at the meeting. Additienal information is provided as appropriate.

The composition and effectiveness of the board is reviewed regulariy, particularly with regard to the
skills and experience required of the executive and non-executive directors in relation to the Group’s
husingsses. This review concentrates an experience, age and term of service and maintaining the

balance between executive and non-executive directors. Both executive and non-executive directors
have a wide range of knowledge and experience which they contribute o the board's deliberations.

At the beginning of the financial year the board consisted of seven members, three of whom
were non-executive. On 31 March 2001, the non-executive Chairman stepped down from the
board and was replaced by one of the existing executive directors who became executive
Chairman. The board was strengthened during the year by the appointment of a further two
non-executive directors on 1 April 2001 and a further executive director on 18 June 2001, On
12 September 2001, one of the executive directors resigned from the board. Following these
changes the board now comprises four executive and four non-executive directors. Throughout
the financial year, the offices of Chairman and Chief Executive were held by separate individuals.
In the period to 31 March 2001, the office of Chairman was & non-executive role but since that
date it is now an executive role. The board has nominated Robert Alcock as the Company's
senior independent director. Biographies of the current directors and their membership of the
board and tts committees are shown against the individual directors’ names on pages 50 and 51.

Any director who is appointed during the year is required to stand for election at the first
Annual General Meeting after his appointment. In addition, one third of al! directors are required
to retire by rotation at each Annual General Meeting of the Company.

All diractors are able, where appropriate, to secure the assistance of cutside professional advice
at the Company's expense.

Non-executive directors

With their different backgrounds, the non-executive directors bring a wide range of experience
and expertise to the Companys affairs and provide independent judgement on key issues of
strategy, performance and rescurces, including key appointments and standards of conduct.
Fach of the non-executive directors has a signed letter of appointment terminable by either party
on six months’ nofice to expire at any time.

At the beginning of the financial year, the Company had three independent non-executive
directors, Bob Morton, Neil Mackay and Charles Good, who attended monthly board meetings
and who were all members of the Company’s Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.
COn 31 March 2001, Bob Morton stepped down from the board and on 1 April 2007 Robert
Alcock and Christian Strenger joined the board as non-executive directors, the former in the
capacity of non-executive Deputy Chairman.

Board committees
Certain of the board’s duties are delegated to committees of the board, all of which have
written terms of reference and whose responsibilities and composition are as follows:

The Audit Commitiee ensures that an objective and professional relationship is maintained with
the external auditors. The Committee meets three times a year to discuss accounting, audit and
internal control matters, as well as reviewing the financial statements and compliance with
accounting standards. The Group Finance Director is invited to attend part of each meeting. The
external auditors may request a meeting with the Audit Committee at any time and one of their
represemtatives is present at alt meetings. There is provision for the external auditors 1o discuss
ary concerns they may have with the Committee in the absence of management if necessary In
the period 1o 31 March 2001, the Committee comprised the three non-executive directors under
the chairmanship of Bokx Morton. Since 1 April 2001, it is now chaired by Robert Alcock and
comprises all of the four current non-executive directors.

R
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The Rernuneration Committee meets at 1east twice a year 0 review the remuneration packages and
service contracts of the directors and certain senior executives. The Committee is also responsible for
adrinistering the Company's share option schemes. In the period to 31 March 2001, the Committee
comprised the thrae non-executive directors under the chairmanship of Bob Morton. Since ¥ April
2001, it is chaired by Robert Alcock and comprises all of the four current non-executive directors.

The Nomination Commitiee meets as necessary and is responsipte for reviewing and making
proposals 1o the board on the appointment of directors. In the period to 31 March 2001, the
Committee consisted of Bob Morton, Neil Mackay and David Wright and was chaired by

Bab Morton. Since 1 April 2001, it now comprises Robert Alcock, Neil Mackay, Charles Good,
David Wright and Richard Nichols and is chaired by David Wright.

Relationship with institutional investors
The Company has designated David Wright, Richard Nichois and Mike Butierwaorth as its principal
spokespersons with institutional investors, analysts, press and other interested parties.

Relationship with private investors

The board recognises that not all the Company’s private investors have regular access to market
information. Al shareholders are sent copies of Annual and interim Reports and, where
appropriate, drculars and prospectuses, and are given notice to enable them to attend the
Company's Annual General Meeting. Shareholders whose shares are held by nominees may
receive copies of such communications upon request.

Additionally, the Company has an internet web site, www.incepta.com, on which it publishes
its Annual and interim Reports, press releases and other such information concerning the
Company's business and development and which enabies information on the Company to reach
a grester number of investors worldwide.

Intetnal controls
The board of directars has overall responsibility for establishing key procedures designed to
achieve 3 sound system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Combined Code requires that the board reviews and reports on the effectiveness of the
Group’s system of internal control including controls covering financial, operational, compliance
and risk management matters.

Financial reporting

The Group operates & comprehensive financial reporting system. Detailed annual budgets are
prepared by operating units, reviewed by Group fFinance and approved at subsidiary board
meetings. The overall Group budget is reviewed and approved by the board. QOperating units
cormplete standard maonthly reporting packages which compare actual and forecast results
together with cash flows against budget and prior year. Performance is discussed at monthiy
subsidiary board meetings and consolidated actual and forecast results by operating unit are
reviewed and discussed by the Group board each month.

Operational control environment

An environment of competence and integrity is promoted by way of stringent recruitment
procedures, regular staff appraisals and communication of codes of conduct and control
procedures by senior managemeant acrass the Group. A clear group arganisaticnal structure is
maintained with appropriate fines of reporting and delegation of authority.

Risk management

The beard has established an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
significant risks faced by the Group. A risk review report, which identifies key risks, the impact
should they accur, and actions being taken to manage those risks to the desired level, is produced
at least half-yearly by each business unit and by each Group departmental head. In addition,
proposed improvernents 1o the way that risks are managed are also reported. This system has
been in place throughout the year under review and up to the date of approval of this annual
feport and is reviewed reqularly by the board of directors. 1tis designed 1o manage rather than 1o
eliminate the risks inherent in achieving the Group’s business objectives and can therefore provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The risk
management process is applied to all new businesses acquired by the Group as part of their
integration. The board receives regular reports on progress during the year.

Detailed nternal finanaal procedures are set out for operating units. Self-certification control
questionnaires are completed by the head of finance at each operating unit and are reviewed by
Group Finance and the results are reported to the Audit Committee.

The directors are satisfied that the procedures in place throughout the year ensured full
compliance with the internal control reguirements of the Combined Code.

Going concern

The directors have reviewed the Group's budget and cash flow for the year ending 28 February 2003
and considered outline plans for the Group thereafter. The directors are satisfied that the Company and
the Group have adeguate resources to cantinue in aperational existence far the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements,
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Incepta Group has established a Remuneration Committee to address all matters relating to
the remunerafion of its key executives

The constitution and responsibility of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee’s principal function is to determine the remuneration packages
of the executive directars. 1t reviews the performance of the executive directors and sets the
scale and structure of their remuneration and the basis of their service agreements with due
regard to the interests of shareholders. No executive director may participate in decisions
regarding his own remuneration.

The Committee also makes recommendatians to the board cancerning the allocation of share
options to employees.

The Committee consists solely of the non-executive directors, Bob Morton (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee up to 31 March 2001), Neit Mackay, Charles Good, Christian
Strenger (from 1 April 2001) and Robert Alcock (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
from ¥ April 2001). The Committee has access to professional advice as and when it
considers it necessary.

Remuneration policy

In determining remuneration packages, the Remuneration Committee has regard to the
importance of attracting, retaining and motivating executive directors of the highest calibre as
well as linking reward to the Group’s performance.

Within this context, the Committee has developed remuneration packages which provide a
competitive base salary combined with incentive arrangements linked to challenging
performance targets. The interests of the executive directors are aligned with those of
sharehelders.

Remuneration packages

Basic salary and benefits in kind

Basic salary and benefits are normally determined on an annual basis, currently 1 March, after
considering the individual's performance, responsibilities and market trends. Particular regard
is paid 1o salary levels in companies of a comparable size, sector and performance. Benefits
may include company cars, life assurance, permanent health and private medical insurance.
The value of berefits is not pensicnable.

Performance related bonus

The executive directors may be awarded an annual cash bonus up to a maximum of annual
basic salary, which is not pensionable, providing an incentive to achieve short-term
performance targets related to earnings per share growth. In addition, the Committee may
also award individual discretionary bonuses.

For the year under review, no bonuses were payable to the executive directors in respect of
meeting earnings per share growth targets for the year.

Pensions

Pension contributions are made to the executive directors’ pension plans. David Wright,
Richard Nichols and Mike Butterwerth currently participate in a company money purchase
pension plan. The Company contributes 10% of annual salary to the pension plan. The
Committee allows each director, at his own discretion, to make a salary sacrifice to increase
his pensicn contribution by transferring part of his annual salary into the money purchase
pension plan. Anthony Carlisle receives 20% of annual salary from the Company, which is
paid into his personal pension scheme arrangements.

Share options

The Committee decided to award share options to Mike Butterworth in June 2007 on his
appeintment as a directer in order te provide him with a competitive remuneration package
and secure his services to the Group. In addition, in October 2001 the Committee decided to
award share options to all the executive directors and certain key executives in the core
operating subsidiaries, maintaining the commitment tc the philosophy of wide and deep
share ownership across the Group.

The executive directors are entitled to participate in the lncep{a Group Savings Related Share
Option Scheme and the Incepta Group All Employee Share Qwnership Plan.




performance Share Plan

Shareholder approval is now being sought 1o establish a Performance Share Plan, under
which executive directors will, subject to the achievement of stretching performance targets
over a substantial period of time, receive free shares. An explanation is set out in a separate
letter to shareholders from the Chairman,

Service contracts

David Wright, Richard Nichols, Mike Butterwerth and Anthony Carlisle all have service
agreements with the Company terminable by either party giving to the other not less than
twelve months written notice.

Outside appointments

The Group expects that executive directors witl operate under full time service contracts and
would not normally accept appointments outside of the Group. It is recognised, however,
that provided the time commitment is limited, a non-Group appointment may broaden the
management experience of the executives concerned. Any such appointment would require
the approval of the Committee and it would be expected that any payment for such services
would be retained by the executive.

Non-executive directors

The executive directors are responsible for setting the non-executive directors' fees. All non-
executive directors have signed a letter of appointment terminabie by either party on six
months notice to expire at any time.
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The rermuneration of each director for the year ended 28 February 2002 was as follows:

Cash value  Compensation Total Total Pension Pension
Basic salary/ of benefits for loss emoluments emoluments  contributions  contributions
fees Bonus in kingd of office 2002 2001 2002 2001
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Executive directors

David Wright (nm 350,000 - 1,576 - 351,576 603,065 35,000 30,000
Richard Nichcls (2} 250,000 - 2,708 - 252,708 360,134 25,000 18,000
Mike Butterworth* 3 109,285 - 1,731 - 111,02¢ - 10,930 -
Anthony Carlisle (4) 330,000 - 2,880 - 332,880 502,469 66,000 60,000
Kevin Steeds** (5) 98,050 - 2,194 206,860 307,104 351,686 9,748 17,500

Non-executive directors (6)
Neit Mackay 25,000 - - - 25,000 18,000 - -
Charles Good 25,000 - - - 25,000 18,000 - -
Robent Alcock*** 32,083 - - - 32,083 - - -
Christian Strenger*** 22,916 - - - 22,916 - - -
Bob Morton**** - - - - - 25,000 - -
1,242,344 - 11,089 206,860 1,460,293 1,878,354 146,678 125,500

Aggregate notional gains made by directors on share options exercised during the year

ended 28 February 2002 were £284,353 (David Wright £11,869, Richard Nichols £86,792 and
Kevin Steeds £185,592). Details of these are disclosed under the relevent share option schemes
as set out on pages 102 to 105,

* %
* kX

*ok Ak

M

2

&

(5

appointed to the board on 18 Juna 2001
resigned from the board on 12 September 2001
appointed to the hoard on 1 Ap.. 2001
resigned from the board on 37 March 2001

David Wright was the highest paid director for the year under review. Under his
service contract, he was paid a salary of £350,000 in the year to 28 February 2002.
The Company also contributed 10% of annual salary to the executive's pension plan.
Under the salary sacrifice arrangements in place, he elected to direct £16,300 of his
annual salary to his pension. No bonus was payable for the year under review,

Richard Nichols, under his service contract, was paid an annual salary of £250,000 in
the year to 28 February 2002. The Company alse contributed 10% of annual salary
to the executive's pension plan. No bonus was payable for the year under review.

Mike Butterworth joined the board on 18 June 2001. Accordingly the information

in the table above reflects only eight and a half months of his actual annual
remuneration. Under his service contract, he was paid an annual salary of £155,000
in the year to 28 February 2002. The Company also contributed 10% of annual salary
to the executive's pension plan. No bonus was payable for the year under review.

Anthony Carlisle, under his service contract, was paid an annual salary of £330,000 in
the year to 28 February 2002. The Company also contributed 20% of annual salary
1o the executive’s pension plan. No bonus was payable for the year under review.

Kevin Steeds resigned from the board on 12 September 2001, Accordingly the
information in the table above reflects only six and a half months of his actual annual
remuneration. Under his service contract, he was paid an annuat salary of £185,000
in the year to 28 February 2002. The Company also contributed 10% of annual salary
to the executive’s pension plan. Under the safary sacrifice arrangements in place,

he elected to direct £9,250 of his annual salary to his pension.

in additien to his remuneration listed above, Kevin Steeds was paid £206,860 as
compensation for loss of office as a directer following his resignation, including
£21,860 in respect of pension contributions.

It their capacity as non-executive directors to the Group, Neil Mackay, Charles Good
and Christian Strenger recelved annual fees of £25,000. In his capacity as a non-
executive Deputy Chairman, Robert Aicock received annual fees of £35,000. The fees
in respect of Rabert Alcock and Christian Strenger were only payable for the period
from 1 April 2001, the date of their appointment as non-executive directors, to

28 February 2002. No fees were payable to Bob Morton for the period from 1 March
2001 o 31 March 2001, the date of his resignation as a non-executive director.
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Shareholdings
The directors who served during the year held interests in the ordinary share capital of the
Company as follows:

As at 1 March 2001

or subsequent As at As at

date of appointment 28 February 2002 7 May 2002
Executive
David Wright 10,490,028 10,530,223 10,530,741
Richard Nichols 800,000 1,080,195 1,080,713
Mike Butterworth** - 40,000 40,000
Antheny Carlisle 12,765,979 7,765,979 7,765,979
Kevin Steeds*** 3,773,397 nfa* n/a*
Non-executive
Neil Mackay 508,181 560,182 560,182
Charles Good 3,265,689 3,405,689 3,465,689
Robert Alcock* *** - 69,894 95,412
Christian Strenger**** - - -
Bob Morton****« 12,000,000 n/a* n/a*
* not applicable as not a serving director at that date

b appointed to the board on 18 june 2001

***  resigned from the board on 12 September 2001
****  appointed to the board on 1 April 2001

*x*** resigned from the board on 31 March 2001

The above shareholdings were ait beneficially held except for 2,108,276 ordinary shares
attributable to Charles Good and 192,034 ordinary shares attributable to Neil Mackay which
were non-beneficially held. Included in the holding of Bob Morton as at 1 March 2001 are
2,500,000 shares held by Southwind Limited, an investment company which is ultimately
owned by a trust established by Mr Morton for the benefit of his children. The table above
includes directors’ interest in shares acquired through the Incepta Group plc All Employee
Share Cwnership Plan.

None of the directors has any other interest in the shares of the Company or its subsidiaries.
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Options
The directors’ interests in share options under the Company’s share option schemes are
included in the tables below:

Incepta Group plc Employee Share Option Scheme

The Incepta Group plc Employee Share Option Scheme was established on 4 November 1988
for a term of 10 years. Accordingly, no further options have been granted under the Scheme
during the current financial year. The table below summarises all outstanding options
currently issued under the scheme. In normal circumstances, the options may be exercised at
any time between the third and tenth anniversaries of their date of grant.

Held on Exercised Held on Held on Exercise
1 March during the 28 February 7 May price per
2001 year 2002 2002 share Exercisable between
Director
Richard Nichois 120,000 (120,000} - - 21.40p 29 QOctober 2000-2007
Employees
Total by exercise price 140,000 - 140,000 140,000 31.00p 1 Septernber 1996-2003
40,000 - 40,000 40,000 12.50p 31 January 1998-2005
1,500,000 (400,000} 1,100,000 900,000 10.50p 5 January 1999-2006
146,000 - 146,000 146,000 20.50p 18 July 1999-2006
650,000 (120,000} 530,000 530,000 21.40p 29 October 2000-2007
2,596,000 (640,000) 1,956,000 1,756,000
Richard Nichols made a notional gain of £72,720 on the exercise of the above share options
during the year. The market price of the Company's shares at the date of exercise was
82.C pence.
incepta Group ple Executive Share Option Plan
The Incepta Group pic Executive Share Option Plan was established by the Company at its
Annual General Meeting on 3 July 1998, for a term of 10 years. In normal circumstances, the
cptions may be exercised at any time between the third and tenth anniversaries of their date
of grant, provided that performance conditions relating to earnings per share growth to
which they are subject have been fulfilled.
Held on Granted Exercised Lapsed Held on Held on Exercise
1 March during during during 28 February 7 May price per
2001 the year the year the year 2002 2002 share Exercisable between
Director
Richard
Nichols 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 24.50p 4 May 2002-2009
Employees
Total by
exercise
price 825,000 - (55,000} (10,000) 760,000 760,000 23.25p 22 September 2001-2008
2,175,000 - - {150,000 2,025,000 2,025,000 24.50p 4 May 2002-2009
2,185,000 — - - 2,185,000 2,185,000 55.50p 12 October 2002-2008
200,000 - - - 200,000 200,000 100.50p 25 January 2003-2010
150,000 - - - 150,000 150,000 129.00p 20 October 2003-2010
- 75,000 - - 75,000 75,000 35.75p 16 October 2004-2011

6,535,000 75,000 (55,000) (160,000) 6,395,000 6,395,000
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incepta Group pic Executive Long Term Incentive Plan

The Incepta Group plc Executive Long Term Incentive Plan was established by the Company at
its Annual General Meeting on 7 July 2000, for a term of 10 years. In normal circumstances,
the cptions may be exercised at any time between the third and tenth anniversaries of their
date of grant to the extent that they have vested, provided that performance conditions
relating to earnings per share growth to which they are subject have been fulfilled. Opticns
will vest in respect of one third of the shares on each of the third, fourth and fifth
anniversaries of the date of grant.

Held on Granted Lapsed Held on Held on Exercise
1 March during the during the 28 February 7 May price
2001 year year 2002 2002 per share Exercisable between
Directors
David Wright - 300,000 - 300,000 300,000 35.75p 16 Cctober 2004-2011
Richard Nichols - 300,000 - 300,000 300,000 35.75p 16 QOctober 2004-2011
Mike Butterworth - 300,000 - 300,000 300,000 73.00p 18 June 2004-2011
- 200,000 - 200,000 200,000 35.75p 16 October 2004-2011
Anthony Carlisle - 300,000 - 300,000 300,000 35.75p 16 October 2004-2011
Employees
Total by exercise
price 3,174,000 - {185,000) 2,989,000 2,989,000 129.00p 20 Octicber 2003-2010
- 5,635,000 - 5,635,000 5,635,000 35.75p 16 Qctober 2004-2011

3,174,000 7,035,000 {185,000) 10,024,000 10,024,000

The Group is committed to a philosophy of wide and deep share ownership. As such, the
Group has introduced a Savings Related Share Option Scheme in each of the last four years
t0 enable every employee to participate in the growth of the Group. The tables below
summarise the current options issued and outstanding under each of the four schemaes.

Incepta Group plc 1998 Savings Related Share Option Scheme

Hald on Exercised Lapsed Held an Held an Exercise
1 March during the during the 28 February 7 May price per
2001 year year 2002 2002 share Fyercisabie between
Directors
David Wright 38,240 (38,240) - - - 15.2p 1 January-30 June 2002
Richard Nichols 38,240 (38,240) - - - 15.2p 1 January-30 june 2002
Kevin Steeds 38,240 (38,240) - - - 15.2p 1 January-30 June 2002
Employees
Total by exercise date 1,826,581 (1,528,778) (82,386} 215,417 45,487 15.2p 1 January-30 June 2002
12,746 - - 12,746 12,746 15.2p 1 February-30 july 2002
7,648 {7,648} - - - 15.2p 1 July-31 December 2002
1,961,695 (1,651,146) {82,386} 228,163 58,233

During the year David Wright, Richard Nichols and Kevin Steeds made notional gains of
£11,969, £14,072 and £13,499 respectively on the exercise of the above share options.
The market price of the Company's shares at the date of the exercises was 46.5 pence,
52.0 pence and 50.5 pence respectively.
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Incepta Group plc 1999 Savings Related Share Option Scheme

Held on Exercised Lapsed Held on Held en Exercise
1 March during the during the 28 February 7 May price per
2001 year year 2002 2002 share Exercisable between
Directors
David Wright 5,771 = {5,771) - - 47.0p 1 January-3G June 2003
Richard Nichols 5,771 - (5.771) - - 47 0p 1 January-3C June 2003
Employees
Total by exercise price 169,827 - {166,731) 3,096 3,096 50.0p 1 January-3C June 2002
1,341,417 (4,992) {(308,046) 1,028,379 1,016,425 47 Op 1 January-30 June 2003
1,522,786 (4,992) {486,319) 1,031,475 1,019,521
* includes 5,771 relating te Kevin Steeds who was a director of the Company at 1 March
2001 and resigned from the Board on 12 September 2001.
Incepta Group plc 2000 Savings Related Share Option Scheme
Held on Lapsed Held on Held on Exercise
1 March during the 28 February 7 May price per
2001 year 2002 2002 share Exercisable between
Directors
David Wright 748 (748) - - 102.6p 1 January-30 June 2004
Richard Nichols 748 (748) - - 103.6p 1 January-30 June 2004
Kevin Steeds 748 (748) - - 103.6p 1 January-30 June 2004
Employees
Total by exercise price 933,426 (560,374) 373,052 360,841 103.6p 1 January-30 June 2004
281,183 (142,698) 138,485 134,749 110.0p 1 january-30 june 2003
11,114 (11,114) - - 139.5p 1 January-30 June 2004
1,227,967 {716,430) 511,537 495,590
Incepta Group plc 2001 Savings Related Share Option Scheme
Granted Lapsed Held on Held on Exercise
during the during the 28 February 7 May price per
year year 2002 2002 share Exercisable between
Directors
David wright 10,305 - 10,305 10,305 29.50p 1 January-30 June 2005
Richard Nichals 10,305 - 10,305 10,305 29.50p 1 January-30 June 2005
Mike Butterworth 10,305 - 10,305 10,305 25.50p 1 fanuary-30 June 2005
Employees
Total by exercise price 1,646,713 (11,592) 1,635,121 1,622,241 29.50p 1 January-30 June 2005
34,212 (2,947) 31,265 31,265 38.95p 1 January-30 June 2005
214,886 - 214,886 214,886 31.50p 1 January-30 June 2004
1,926,726 {14,539) 1,912,187 1,899,307
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Other schemes

Certain former directors and employees of Citigate Communications Group Limited hold
share options over the Company’s shares under separate schemes. The replacement option
schemas resulted from options originally held under the Citigate Communications Group
Limited Approved Executive Share Option Scheme and sought to place each option holder in
a similar position to that which they were in before the acguisition by Incepta in March 1897.
The shares in Incepta Group plc, aver which these options have been granted, are already
issued and are held by the Citigate Employee Share Trust. The tables befow surnmarise the
current options outstanding under these two schemes.

Citigate Communications Group Limited Approved Executive Share Option Scheme

Held on Exercised Held on Held on Exercise
1 March during the 28 February 7 May price per
2001 year 2002 2002 share Exercisable between
Directors
Kevin Steeds 216,098 (216,098) - - 4 86p 25 April 1998-2005

Kevin Steeds made & notional gain of £172,093 on the exercise of the above share options
during the year. The market price of the Company’s shares at the date of exercise was
84.5 pence.

As a result of the deferred consideration payable under the acquisition of Citigate
Communications Group Limited, the Citigate Employee Share Trust also issued the following
unapproved share options on 1 July 1998. The unapproved options may be exercised after
31 January 1989 and only if there has been no exercise prior to 1 February 1999 of the
approved replacement option as detailed above,

Citigate Communications Group Limited Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme

Heid on Held on Held on Exercise
1 March 28 February 7 May price per
2001 2002 2002 employee Exercisable between
Employees 348,090* 348,090 348,090 f£1 1 February 1999-1 July 2005

* includes 110,505 relating ta Kevin Steeds whe was a directar of the Company at 1 March
2001 and resigned from the board on 12 September 2001.

Incepta Group plc All Employee Share Ownership Plan

In July 2001, the Company introduced an All Employee Share Ownership Flan (AESOP). The
plan, which is open to all employees, offers a tax efficient way for employees to purchase
incepta Group pic shares. Under the terms of the plan and subject to certain limits, a trust
purchases and holds shares on behalf of the participants, using contributions rmade by the
participants. For every five shares purchased in this way {partnership shares) participants are
entitled to one matching share, purchased from contributions made by the Company. The
employees can withdraw the parinership shares from the plan at any time and the matching
shares only after three years.

The number of matching shares held by the trust at 28 February 2002 was 23,337 with a
market value of £10,735.

Share price
The market price of incepta Group plc shares as at 28 February 2002 was 46.0 pence per share.
The price ranged from 27.5 pence per share to 106.0 pence per share during the financial year.
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Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Incepta Group plc will be held at 26 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 15H on 5 July
2002 at 12 noon for the transaction of the following business:

Ordinary Business
Resolution 1
To re-elect David Wright as a director of the Company, who retires by rotation in accordance with the Articies of Asscciation.

Resolution 2
To re-elect Charles Good as a director of the Company, who retires by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Resolution 3
To re-glect Anthony Carlisle as a director of the Company, who retires by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Assaciation.

Resolution 4
That the directars’ report and financial statements of the Company for the year ended 28 February 2002 be received and adopted.

Resolution 5
Special notice having been received, 1o re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the Company to held office until the next General Meeting
at which the accounts are laid before the Company and to authorise the directors to determine their remuneration.

Explanation to Resolution 5

KPMG Audit Plc were appointed by the directers as auditors to fill the vacancy created by the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers.
PricewaterhouseCocpers have stated that there are no circumstances connected with their resignation which they consider should be brought
to the notice of the membaers of the Company. Spedial notice has been received by the Company to propose as an ordinary resolution this
resolution to re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditors and authorise the directors to determine their remuneration.

Resolution &
To declare a final dividend of 0.70 pence net per ordinary share.

Resolution 7
That the Company be and is hereby authorised to:

ay make donations to EU Political Organisations; and
by incur EU Political Expenditure

in an aggregate amount not exceeding £100,000 during the period ending on the date of the Company's Annual General Meeting in 2003,
Such authority shall extend to enable any such donation to be made or expenditure to be incurred by the Company or by its wholly cwned
subsidiary, Citigate Public Affairs Limited. For the purposes of this resolution, ‘donations’, 'EU Political Organisations’ and 'EU Political
Expenditure’ have the meanings set out in Part XA of the Companies Act 1985 (as amended by the Political Parties, Eleciions and
Referendums Act 2000).

Explanation to Resolution 7

Authority is sought to enable the Company to enter into financial arrangements with organisations which may fali within the definition of
"political organisations’ under the Political Parties, Elections and Referendums Act 2000 (the *Act’) which came into force on 16 February
2001 and which contains restrictions on companies making donations or incurring expenditure in relation to EU Poiitical Grganisations. The
ACt requires comnpanies 1o seek shareholder approval for donations to organisations within the Eurcpean Union which are, or could be,
categorised as EU Political Organisations as provided for by the Act.

Although the Company does not intend to make donations to political parties within the normal meaning of that expression, as part of its
normal work on behalf of clients and as part of its own marketing, the Company* public affairs subsidiary, Citigate Public Affairs Limited,
needs to attend or sponsor events which are arganised by political parties or other political organisations, for which a charge is made.

The Company may also from time to time invite clients and prospective clients to attend events that could fall within the meaning of the Act’s
provisions. The Act defines 'denations’ very broadly such that this sort of activity would fail within its armbit. it similarly defines EU Politica
Organisations very widely such that it may include, for example, bodies concerned with policy review and law reform, with representation of
the business community or with the representation of their communities or special interest groups which the Company may wish to support.

The Company believes that the authority proposed under this resolution to allow it to fund activity which would bear the much broader
meaning of a donation, as provided for by the Act, to a limit of £100,000 is necessary.

In accordance with the Act the Company will make disclosure in its next Annual Report of any donation made by it to an £U Political
Organisation or any EU Political Expenditure incurred which is in excess of £200.
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Special Business

Resolution 8

That the rules of the incepta Group Performance Share Plan which are sumrmarised in the Appendix to the Chairman’s fetter dated 31 May 2002,
set out in the form of the draft document produced to the meeting and, for the purposes of identification signed by the Chairman of the
meeting, be and are hereby approved and adopted.

Resolution 9
Subject to the approval of the Inland Revenue, that the directors be and are hereby authorised to amend Rule 5 of the incepta Groug plc
Savings Related Share Option Scheme by deleting sub-rule 5.11b).

Explanation of Resolutions 8 and 9

Each of these resolutions will be proposed as an ordinary resolution

A separate letter from the Chairman dated 31 May 2002 explains the background to resolutions 8 and 9. A summary of the principal features
of the Performance Share Plan appears in the Appendix 1o the Chalrman's letter.

Resolution 10

That the directors be and hereby are generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant to section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 ('the Act’)
to exercise all powers of the Company to allot, grant options over, deal with or dispose of any relevant securities {as defined in section 80(2)
of the Act) 1o such persons, at such times and generafly on such terms and conditions as the directors may determine up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £4,377,949 provided that this authority shall expire, unless previousiy renewed, revoked or varied by the Company in
general meeting, fifteen months after the passing of this resolution, o, if earlier, at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting next
following the passing of this resolution save that, before such expiry, the Company may make any offer or agreement which would or might
require relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry and, notwithstanding such expiry, the directors may aliot relevant securities in
pursuance of any such offer or agreement, and provided further that all unexercised authorities previously granted to the directors to allot
relevant securities be and are hereby revoked.

Explanation of Resolution 10

Resolution 10 which will be proposed as an ordinary resolution, would give the directors authority to allot shares up to a maximum nominal
amount of £4,377,949 being the whole of the authorised but unissued share capital of the Company and representing 92.7% of the
Company’s current issued share capital. This amount of authority is required to provide the directors with flexibility to allot shares up to
approximately one third of the Company’s issued share capital in addition to allowing for the aliotment of shares in respect of deferred
consideration which may fall due pursuant to acquisitions, on the exercise of options and aiso on the issue of scrip dividends. The existing
authority would be revoked and this authority would expire on the date of the 2003 Annual General Meeting or 4 October 2003, whichever
is the earlier. Save as set out above, the directors have no present intention of exercising this authority.

Resolution 11

That subject to the passing of Resolution 10, the directors be and are hereby empowered pursuant to section 95 of the Companies Act 1985
("the Act} to allot equity securities (as defined in section 94(2) of the Act) for cash pursuant to the general authority conferred on them by
Resolution 10 as if section 89(1) of the Act did not apply to any such allotment provided that this power shall be limited to:

{(a) the allotment of equity securities in connection with an offer of securities (whether by way of a rights issue, open offer or otherwise;,
open for acceptance for a period fixed by the directors, to holders of ordinary shares on the register on any fixed recerd date in
proportion to their holdings of ordinary shares, subject to such exdusions or other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or
expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or legal or practical problems arising under the laws of, or the requirements of, any
requlatory body or any stock exchange in any territory; and

(b) the aliotment {ctherwise than pursuant to paragraph (a) above} of securities up to an aggregate nominal amount of £236,102

and shall expire, unless previously renewed, revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, at such time as the general autharity
conferred on the directors by Resclution 10 expires save that, before the expiry of this power, the Company may make any offer or
agreement which would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry and, notwithstanding such expiry, the directors may
allot equity securities in pursuance of any such offer or agreement.

Explanation of Resolution 11
Resoiution 11 will be proposed as a special resolution and would renew the power of the directors to allot shares for cash as though the
rights of pre-emption conferred by section 89(1) of the Companies Act 1985 did not apply:

(a) in respect of the whole of the authorised but unissued share capital in connection with an offer to existing shareholders (to allow the
directors to take action to overcome certain practical difficulties which could arise in the case of such an cffer), and

{b} up to a nominal amount of £236,102, being 5% of the current issued share capital of the Company {to give the directors some flexibility
in financing business opportunities as they arise).

This power would expire on the date of the 2003 Annual General Meeting or 4 October 2003, whichever is the earlier.

Resolution 12

That the Company be and is hereby unconditionally and generally autharised pursuant to Article 11.4 of the Articles of Assaciation of the
Company and in accordance with the provisions of section 166 of the Companies Act 1985 (‘the Act’), to make market purchases (as defined
in section 163 of the Act) of ordinary shares of 1 pence each in the capital of the Company provided that:

{a) the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby authorised tc be purchased is 70,830,760,

(b) the minimum price which may be paid for any such ordinary share is 1 pence per share;
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{c} the maximum price which may be paid for any such ordinary share is, in respect of a share contracted to be purchased on any day, an
amount equal to 105% of the average of the middle market quotations for an ordinary share as derived from the Daily Official List of
the London Stock Exchange on the ten business days immediately preceding the day on which any such ordinary share is contracted to
be purchased; and

(d) the authority hereby conferred shall expire on the date of the 2003 Annual General Meeting or 4 October 2603, whichever is the earlier
{but so that this power shall enable the Company to make offers or agreements before the expiry of this authority which would or might
require ordinary shares to be purchased by the Company after the expiry of this power).

Explanation of Resolution 12

in certain circurnstances it may be advantageous for the Company to purchase its own shares. Resolution 12, which will be proposed as a
special resolution, seeks authority from shareholders to do so, such authority to expire on the date of the 2003 Annua! General Meeting or
4 October 2003, whichever is the earlier. The directors intend to exercise this power only if and when, in the light of market conditions
prevailing at the time, they believe that the effect of such purchases will be to increase earnings per share and is in the best interests of
shareholders generally. Other investment opportunities, appropriate gearing levels and the overall position of the Company will be taken into
account before deciding upon this course of action. Any shares purchased in this way will be cancelled and the number of shares in issue will
be accordingly reduced.

This resolution specifies the maximum number of shares which may be acquired {being 14.999% of the Company’s issued share capital as at
7 May 2002 of 472,205,067) and the maximum and minimum prices at which they may be bought.

The board unanimously recommends shareholders to vote in favour of Resolutions 1 to 12 above.

By order of the board

M G Butterworth (\\_‘9 3 % W

Company Secretary
7 May 2002

Registered Office:

3 tondon Wall Buildings
London Walt

EC2M 55Y

Notes

1. A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or mere proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead
of him. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company. Returning the Form of Proxy will not prevent a sharehelder from attending
in person and voting at the meeting.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a duly certified copy
of such power or autherity must be deposited with the Company’s Registrars, Lloyds TSB Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West
Sussex, BN99 6ZL not fater than 12 noon on 3 July 2002 being 48 hours before the meeting.

3. in the case of a Corporation, the Form of Proxy should be under its Common Seal, or under the hand of an officer of the Corporation
duly authorised in that behalf.

4. Copies of the following documents, which are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during usual business
hours on any weekday (Saturday and public holidays excepted) will also be available for inspection at the place of the Annual General
Meeting from 9 a.m. on the day of the meeting until the conclusion of the meeting:

{a) copies of service contracts of the directors with the Company; and

{h) the register of interests of the directors (and their families) in the share capital of the Company.




